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January 2, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing agreement with Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc. (Vendor #177203-6003), 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord, NH 03302, for the
provisions of a Commodity Supplemental Food Program and a Senior Farmers Market Nutrition
Program, statewide, by decreasing the price limitation by $28,514 from $1,509,903 to $1,481,389,
with no change to the contract completion date of iSeptember 30, 2021, effective upon Governor
and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 21,
2017 (item #49), as amended on May 2, 2018 (item #58) and as amended on March 13, 2019
(item #14).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust encumbrances
between state fiscal years within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

05-95-90-902010-52600000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION
HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, WIC SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018

102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90006007 $315,000 $0 $315,000

102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90006024 $1,400 $0 $1,400

520-500361
FMNP Food

Costs
90006025 $0 $0 $0

2019 102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076007 $262,475 $0 $262,475

i
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102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90006024 $8,400 $0 $8,400

520-500361
FMNP Food

Costs
90006025 $77,065 $0 $77,065

2020

102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90006007 $262,475 ($12,673) $249,802

102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90006024 $8,400 $0 $8,400

520-500734
FMNP Food

Costs
90006025 $77,065 $0 $77,065

2021

102-500734
Contracts for

Program Svc
90006007 $262,475 ($12,673) $249,802

102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90006024 $8,400 $0 $8,400

520-500361
FMNP Food

Costs
90006025 $77,065 $0 $77,065

2022

102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90006007 $65,618 ($3,168) $62,450

102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90006024 $7,000 $0 $7,000

520-500364
FMNP Food

Costs
90006025 $77,065 $0 $77,065

TOTALS $1,509,903 ($28,514) $1,481,389

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to reduce the funding for the Commodity Supplemental
Food Program due to a state award reduction in federal funding and a decrease in the number of
individuals enrolled in the program. Additionally, scope of service requirements are being updated
to ensure compliance with 7 CFR 247 and 7 CFR 250 as the result of a recent federal review of
the Commodity Supplemental Foods Program by the United States Department of Agriculture,
Food and Nutrition Services.

Services in this agreement continue to include a statewide Commodity Supplemental
Foods Program and a statewide Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program available to eligible
clients. The programs assist with improving the health of low-income elderly persons who are
sixty (60) years of age and older by supplementing their diets with nutritious foods year-round and
fresh fruits and vegetables during the summer months.

Approximately 3,600 individuals will be served annually through September 30, 2021,
which is a decrease from 4,000 annually.

The Department will monitor the Contractor using the following performance measures:

•  The Contractor will provide supplemental foods to a minimum of ninety-five
percent (95%) of the assigned Commodity Supplemental Foods Program
caseload in Federal Fiscal Years (FFYs) 2020 and 2021.
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•  The Contractor will provide farm fresh bundles to a minimum of ninety-five
percent (95%) of the assigned Commodity Supplemental Foods Program
caseload in FFYs 2020 and 2021.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 Revisions to General Provisions of the original contract, the
parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years, contingent on
Governor and Executive Council approval. The Department is not exercising its option to renew
at this time.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the Department may
have to terminate the Commodity Supplemental Food Program early due to the decrease in
available federal funding. Terminating the program early may have adverse effects on the health
of low-income elderly persons, sixty (60) years of age and older, as they will no longer have
access to nutritional foods that supplement their diets year-round. Additionally, the Department
will continue to be out of compliance with federal regulations cited in 7 CFR 247 and 7 CFR 250,
if citations to the regulations are not updated in the contract document.

Area Served: Statewide

Sources of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the US Department of Agriculture, Food
and Nutrition Service, Commodity Supplemental Food Program, Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) #10.565, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 204NH814Y8005, and
from the US Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service, Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program, CFDA #10.576, FAIN 194NH083Y8314 and FAIN 194NH083Y8313.

In the event the Federal Funds become no longer available. General funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Kerrin A. Rounds

Acting Commissioner

The Deparlmenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and indeiiendence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and
Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program Contract

This 3"" Amendment to the Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market Nutrition
Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #3") is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (hereinafter referred to
as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord,
NH 03302.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21, 2017 (Item #49), as amended on May 2, 2018 (Item #5B), and on March 13, 2019 (Item 14),
and the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in
the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these
services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #3 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,481,389.

2. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A - Amendment #3, Scope
of Services.

3. Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, to read:

1. This contract is funded with Federal Funds from the US Department of Agriculture, Food and
Nutrition Service, Commodity Supplemental Food Program, Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) #10.565, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 204NH814Y8005 and
from the US Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service, Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program, CFDA #10.576, FAIN 194NH083Y8314 and FAIN 194NH083Y8313.

4. Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures in
accordance.with the approved budget line items in Exhibits:

3.1. B-1 Budget;

3.2. B-2 Budget - Amendment #2;

3.3. B-3 Budget - Amendment #3;

3.4. B-4 Budget - Amendment #3;

3.5. B-5 Budget - Amendment #3;

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Amendment #3 Contractor Initials
Counties, Inc. ^

RFP.2018-DPHS-12-COMMO-01-A03 Page1of4 Date IrA-1.6' \n



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program

3.6. B-6 Budget;

3.7. B-7 Budget;

3.8. 8-8 Budget;

3.9. B-9 Budget; and

3.10. B-10 Budget.

5. Delete Exhibit B-3 Budget, Amendment #2 and replace with Exhibit 8-3 Budget, Amendment #3,
Comrnodity Supplemental Food Program.

6. Delete Exhibit B-4 Budget, Amendment #2 and replace with Exhibit B-4 Budget, Amendment #3,
Commodity Supplemental Food Program.

7. Delete Exhibit B-5 Budget, Amendment #2 and replace with Exhibit B-5 Budget, Amendment #3,
Commodity Supplemental Food Program.

8. Delete Exhibit C-1 Revisions to General Provisions, Section 2, in its entirety and replace with the
following;

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this Contract, Termination, is amended by adding
the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Contract immediately if the Contractor is not in compliance
with the provisions and scope of services in the Contract.

10.2 The State may terminate the Contract at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, thirty (30) days after providing the Contractor written notice that the State is
exercising its option to terminate the Contract.

10.3 The Contractor may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole
. discretion of the Contractor, one hundred eighty (180) days after providing the State written
notice-that the Contractor is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

10.4 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Contract, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Contract and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.5 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Contract and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.6 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Contract are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.7 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Amendment #3 Contractor Initiais C|A
Counties, Inc.

RFP-2018-DPHS-12-COMMO-01-A03

Counties, Inc. ,
Page 2 of 4 Date 1 [n'^ \



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
DepartmerUof Health and Human Services

'/^ ISiO
Date Lisa Morris

Director

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc.

Tt

A Km lJJ//n^
Jeanne Agri ( \
F.Yprntivf nirertor \y

12/13/2019 V
Date

Executive Director

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of New Hampshire . County of Merrimack on 12/13/2019 before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Signature'^j^f Rotary Public or Justice oftFie"Peace

' Kathy'L. Howard, Notary Public

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

KATHY L. HOWARD Notiry PuMe. NH
My Commission Expires: Mv Commtttkm Eairw Oaubm 17.2023

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Amendment #3
Counties, Inc.

RFP-2018-DPHS-12-COMMO-01-A03 Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date ' Name: ; fiA/OS

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of

the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Amendment #3
Counties, Inc.

RFP-2018-DPHS-12-COMMO-01-A03 Page 4 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

Scope of Services

1. PROViSiONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES

1.1 The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.2 The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are
applicable to the funding of the Services, operations prevention, acquisition, or
rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document
actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of funds.

1.3 The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance service
they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access
to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

2. STATEMENT OF WORK

2.1 The Contractor shall provide statewide public health nutrition services through the
administration of the Commodity Supplemental Food Program (CSFP) and the Senior
Farmers' Market Nutrition Program (SFMNP), with a targeted focus on counties with a
greater number of at-risk elderly individuals, while meeting the nutritional needs of at
least 95% of the assigned caseload. The Contractor shall certify:

2.1.1 Participants are informed of their rights and responsibilities at the time of
certification in the CSFP and SFMNP.

2.1.2 Participants are provided fair hearing procedures for persons who file statements
claiming inappropriate adverse action.

2.1.3 The special needs of the homebound elderly are met by utilizing proxies and
volunteers.

2.2 The Contractor shall provide the certification in 2.1, food delivery and food storage, as
appropriate and in accordance with the Code of Federal Regulations 7 CFR 247 and 7
CFR 250, which includes, but Is not limited to:

2.2.1 Storing and distributing commodities.

2.2.2 Compliance with civil rights requirements.

2.2.3 Maintaining accurate and complete records.

2.2.4 Conducting program outreach.

2.2.5 Determining eligibility of applicants in accordance with eligibility criteria
established by the Department.

2.2.6 Compliance with fiscal and operational requirements established by the
Department.

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Exhibit A - Amendment #3 Contractor Initials;
Counties, Inc. ^ o r-
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2.3 The Contractor shall determine program eligibility for the CSFP and SFMNP elderly
applicants who are at or below 130% of the federal poverty level in accordance with the
annual United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) CSFP and SFMNP Income
Guidelines.

2.4 The Contractor shall maintain participant certification master files at a central location
that is accessible for audit and review for a minimum of three (3) years.

2.5 The Contractor shall work with the Department to produce required program resources
to administer the CSFP and SFMNP in accordance with 7 CFR 247 and 7 CFR 250 and

in a culturally and linguistically appropriate manner, which includes, but is not limited to;

2.5.1 Participant rights and rules information.

2.5.2 Training and educational materials.

2.5.3 Appropriate printed materials, flyers and handouts for program participants.

2.5.4 On-site management evaluations.

2.6 The Contractor shall comply with all USDA Food and Nutrition Services (FNS)
regulations, policies, instructions and state policies and procedures for the CSFP and
SFMNP.

2.7 The Contractor shall adjust the provision of services, as necessary, to ensure
compliance with changes in the federal regulations governing the CSFP and SFMNP
that may occur with the contract period.

2.8 The Contractor shall allow the Department of Health and Human Services, the
Comptroller General, Office of Inspector General, the Department of Agriculture, or any
of its duly authorized representatives, to conduct on-site reviews to determine
compliance with Section 6, Compliance, ensuring access to information that includes,
but is not limited to:

2.8.1 Program operations.

2.8.2 Financial operations.

2.8.3 Storage facility.

2.9 The Contractor shall work with the Department to write policies and implement
procedures to prevent and detect dual participation within the CSFP and SFMNP. The
Contractor shall pursue claims against participants or farmers, as necessary or required.

2.10 The Contractor shall maintain an adequate accounting and record keeping system to
ensure a distinct audit trail, which includes, but not limited to:

2.10.1 Accounting ledgers:

2.10.2 Copies of all subcontracts;

2.10.3 Payments;

2.10.4 Participation rates; and

2.10.5 Invoices and correspondence.

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Exhibit A - Amendment #3 Contractor lnitials^^_
Counties, inc.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2.11 The Contractor shall provide financial and aggregate program data that contains no
personally identifiable information (Pll) to the Department on a monthly basis, and as
requested which includes, but is not limited to:

2.11.1 Yearly race and ethnicity reporting:

2.11.2 Monthly participation count by service area;

2.11.3 Monthly warehouse physical inventory count;

2.12 The Contractor shall obtain prior approval from the Department before allowing
participation to exceed the caseload assigned by the Department for CSFP and SFMNP.

2.13 The Contractor shall comply with USDA Office of Civil Rights policies, including, but not
limited to:

2.13.1 Inserting the non-discrimination statement on all outreach and program materials.

2.13.2 Ensuring all staff and volunteers not discriminate participants based on race, color,
national origin, age, sex or disability.

2.14 The Contractor shall comply with all Federal, State, or local requirements relative to food
safety and health, including required health inspections and procedures for responding
to a food recall.

2.15 The Contractor shall provide participants current nutritional information and materials
regarding the availability of other nutrition, health and social 'service assistance
programs in the individual's service area, which includes, but is not limited to information
regarding::

2.15.1 Supplemental security income benefits available through Title XVI of the Social
Security Act;

2.15.2 Medical assistance available through Title XIX of the Social Security Act, including
medical assistance provided to Medicare beneficiaries; and

2.15.3 The supplemental nutrition assistance program available to all elderly applicants,
as appropriate.

2.16 The Contractor shall coordinate referrals and enrollment initiatives with other

organizations such as the NH Senior Center Network and Faith-based Services
Warehouse and Distribution Requirements.

2.17 The Contractor shall provide warehouse facilities for receiving, storing and distributing
USDA commodities for CSFP and fresh fruit and vegetable bundles for SFMNP in
compliance with state and federal regulations. The Contractor shall:

2.17.1 Store donated foods ensuring foods are distinguished from one another.

2.17.2 Ensure recordkeeping of inventory and separate recordkeeping of donated foods.

2.17.3 Receive food commodities for distribution.

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Exhibit A - Amendment #3 Contractor Initials; QA
Counties, Inc. ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2.17.4 Account for any loss resulting from improper distribution, or improper storage, care
or handling of commodities.

2.17.5 Perform required monthly CSFP caseload and commodity inventory reporting.

2.17.6 Ship commodities, fresh fruit and vegetable bundles to the certification/distribution
sites based on packing dates, ensuring that the oldest commodities and produce
are distributed first.

2.17.7 Provide appropriate refrigeration for up to five (5) days for fresh bulk produce.

2.17.8 Order and maintain appropriate levels of inventory, which includes, but is not
limited to maintaining and safeguarding USDA foods during handling, storage and
distribution per 7 CFR 250.14(b).

2.17.9 Distribute USDA Foods in accordance with the approved food package guide rate.

2.17.10 Distribute donated foods to eligible recipient agencies in a timely manner, in
optimal condition and in amounts for which the recipient agencies are eligible.

2.18 The Contractor shall work with the NH Department of Agriculture to recruit, authorize,
and train farmers to provide bulk purchase of authorized produce for the SFMNP. The
Contractor shall:

2.18.1 Coordinate with farmers for the delivery of the bulk purchased bundles of produce
to CSFP clinic sites statewide.

2.18.2 Development, distribute and collect farmer applications and agreements.

2.18.3 Provide annual farmer orientation and training for the SFMNP.

2.18.4 Develop and distribute nutrition education services and print materials for all
participants of the SFMNP.

3. PERFORMANCE MEASURES

3.1 A minimum of ninety-five percent (95%) of the assigned CSFP caseload receive services
to supplement their diets with nutritious foods year round.

3.2 A minimum of ninety-five percent (95%) of active CSFP participants with SFMNP receive
fresh fruits and vegetables in the summer months.

4. REPORTING AND DELIVERABLES

4.1 The Contractor shall provide the names and addresses of all CSFP certification,
distribution and storage sites under the jurisdiction of the local agency to the Department
annually in October each year of the contract period.

4.2 The Contractor shall provide the financial and aggregate program data in 2.11 to the
Department on a monthly basis and upon request.

4.3 The Contractor shall provide CSFP caseload and commodity inventory reports to the
Department no later than the fifth (5*^) of each month.

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Exhibit A - Amendment.#3 Contractor lnitials;^A_
Counties. Inc. ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

4.4 The Contractor shall provide CSFP and SFMNP race and ethnicity reporting to the
Department upon request.

4.5 The Contractor shall submit an Annual CSFP and SFMNP Report to the Department no
later than September 30th each year of the contract period.

5. COMPLIANCE

5.1 The Contractor hereby agrees that It will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20
U.S.C. 1681 et seq.), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), Age
Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.); Title II and Title III of the Americans
with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 as amended by the ADA Amendment Act of 2008 (42
U.S.C. 12131-12189) as implemented by Department of Justice regulations at (28 CFR
Parts 35 and 36); Executive Order 13166, "Improving Access to Services for Persons
with Limited English Proficiency." (August 11, 2000), all provisions required by the
implementing regulations of the U.S. Department of Agriculture (7 CFR Part 15 et seq);
and FNS directives and guidelines to the effect that no person shall, on the ground of
race, color, national origin, age, sex, or disability, be excluded from participation in, be
denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program
or activity for which the Contractor receives Federal financial assistance from FNS; and
hereby gives assurance that it will immediately take measures necessary to effectuate
this agreement.

5.2 By providing this assurance, the Contractor agrees to compile data, maintain records
and submit records and reports as required to permit effective enforcement of the
nondiscrimination laws, and to permit Department personnel during normal working
hours to review and copy such records, books and accounts, access such facilities, and
interview such personnel as needed to ascertain compliance with the non-discrimination
laws. If there are any violations of this assurance, the Department of Agriculture shall
have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this assurance.

5.3 This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all
Federal financial assistance, grants, and loans of Federal funds, reimbursable
expenditures, grant, or donation of Federal property and interest in property, the detail
of Federal personnel, the sale and lease of, and the permission to use Federal property
or interest in such property or the furnishing of services without consideration or at a
nominal consideration, or at a consideration that is reduced for the purpose of assisting
the recipient, or in recognition of the public interest to be served by such sale, lease, or
furnishing of services to the recipient, or any improvements made with Federal financial
assistance extended to the Program-applicant by USDA. This includes any Federal
agreement, arrangement, or other contract that has as one of its purposes the provision
of cash assistance for the purchase of food, and cash assistance for purchase or rental
of food sen/ice equipment or any other financial assistance extended in reliance on the
representations and agreements made in this assurance.

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Exhibit A - Amendment #3 Contractor Initials:
Counties, Inc.
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Exhibit B*3 - Amendment #3, Commodity Supplementai Food Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BlddeffProgram Nanw: Community Action Program Bolknap Merrimack CountJea, Inc.

Budget Request for Commodity Supplemental Foods Program

Budget Period: July 1, 201S • June 30, 2020

Total Program Cost'
Total.

Contractor Share I Match Funded_^DHHS contract share

1. Tolal Salary/Wages 3.844.00 63,486.00 59.642.00 3.844.00 63.486.00
2. Emplovee Benefits 21.517.00 21.517.00 1.425.00 22.942.00
3.. Consultants

4. Eouipment:

Rental

Repair and Maintenar>ce

Purchase/Depredation

5. Supplies:

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office 265.00 265.00

6. Travel 11.440.00
7. Oeagartcy 43.719.00 43.719.00 43,719.00
8. Current Ej^ertses

Telepttorw 503.00

Postaoe

S
465.00

ubscriptions
Audit and Legal

InsurarKe 5,350.00 5.350.00
Board Expenses

10. MarketinolCommunicatlons

11. Staff Education and TrartirtQ

12. Subcontraas/Aoreements 80.920.00 80.920.00 80.920.00
13. Other (spedffc details mandatory):
Warehouse Supplies 14.883.00 14.883.00

Indirect 5.829.00 5.829.00

238,704.00 11.098.00 249,802.00 238,704.00 11,098.00 249,802.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 4.6H

E)diibit B-3 - Amendment #3, Comnodity Supplemental Food Program
Community Action Program Beilmap^darrinwck Counties IrK.
RFP-2018-OPHS-12-COMMO-01-A03

Page 1 of 1
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Date



Exhibit B-4 - Amendment #3, Commodity Supplemental Food Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BidderrProgratn N«ine: Community Action Program Bolknap Merrtmach Counties. Inc.

Budget Request for Commodity Supplemental Foods Program

Budget Period; July t. 2020 • June 20. 2021

I Cost Contractor Share I Match _Fundedb^_DHHS^ontrtetshar^
Direct

^Progr
Indirect Indirect

V Total Salary/Waaes 59,642,00 3,644,00 63,486.00 59.642.00 3.644.00 63.466,00
2. Emplovee Benefitt 21,517,00 1,425,00 22,942.00 21.517,00 1.425.00 22.942.00
3, Consiitams

4, Equiprttem:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depredation
5, Supplies:

Educational

Pharmacy

Office 265.00 265.00 265.00

6. Travel 11,440.00
7, Occupancy 43.719.00 43.719.00

6. Cuftent Expenses

Telephofte 503.00 503.00

Postaoe 465.00 465.00

Subscriptions
Audit and Legal

Insurance 5.350.00 5.350.00

Board Ewenses

9. Software

10. Marketing/Communicatioos

11. Staff Education and Traininq

12. Subcontraas/Aoreemants 60.920.00 60,920.00

13. Other (specffic details mandatory):
Warehouse supplies 14,883.00 14,863.00

Indirect 5.829.00 5.829.00 5.829.00

11.098.00 T238,704.00 249,802.00 238,704.00 11,098.00 249,802.00 I
Indirect As A Percent of Direct

Exhibit B-4 - Amendment *3, Commocity Supplemental Food Program
Community Action Program BelknapJ4errimad( Counties inc.
RFP-2016-DPHS-12-COMMO-01-A03

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Date



Exhibit B*5 - Amendment #3, Commodity Supplemental Food Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BJddwrProgrsm N*me: Conwmmtty Action Prosnm BePaiip Werrlnwck CountlM. Inc.

Budget Request for Commodity Supplemefitil Foods Program

Budget Period: July 1, 2021 • September M, 2021

Totel Program Cost' Contrector Shere / Match Funded_^.DHHS contract share
Indirect

1. Total Satery/Wagos 15.872.00 961.00 15.872.00
2. Einplovee Benefits 5.379.00 5,735.00 5,735.00
3, Ccnsiitants

4, EQuipmeoc

Rental

Repair arxl Maintenartce

Purchase/DepteciaUon

5, Supplies:

Educational

Pharmacy

Office 66.00 66.00

2.660.00 2.660.00
7. Occupancy 10.930.W 10,930,00
6, Current Expenses

Telephone 125.00 125.00

116.00 116.00
SutMCriplioos

Audit and Legal

InsurarKe 1,337,00
Board Expenses

9. Software

10. Marltetlnq/Cofnmunicetiotts
11. Staff Education and Trainina

12. Subcontracta/Aoreaments 20.230,00 20,230,00 20,230.00

13. Other (speciflc detaiis mandatory):

Warehouse Supplies 3.721,00 3,721.00
Indirect 1,458.00 1,458.00 1,456.00

69,675.00 2.776.00 62,460.00 59,676.00 2,776.00 62,460.00 I
btdlrect As A Percerrt of Direct 4.7*

Exfitrit B-5 • Amendment *3, Contnodity Supplemerital Food Program
Corrynunity Action Program Balknap-Menimsdt Counties
RFP-201643PHS-12-COMMO-01-A03

Page i of 1

Contractor Initials

Data



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63021

Certificate Number: 0004482211

0&

Ba.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1, Dennis T. Martino. Secretary-Clerk of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties.
Inc. (hereinafter the "Corporation"), a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: (I) I am the
duly elected and acting Secretary-Clerk of the Corporation; (2) 1 maintain and have custody and am
familiar with the minute books of the Corporation; (3) 1 am duly authorized to issue certificates with
respect to the contents of such books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have
authorized, on 01/10/2019 such authority to be in force and effect until 9/30/2021
(contract termination date), (see attached)

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of
the Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

Jeanne Agri, Executive Director
Michael Tabory, Deputy Director

Steven E. Gregoire, Budget Analyst
Sara A. Lewko, President, Board of Directors

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire, (state of
incorporation) law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been
modified, amended or rescinded and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof. Excerpt
of dated minutes or copy of article or section of authorizing by-law must be attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of the corporation
this 13th day of December . 2019

Secretary-Clerk

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COUNTY OF MERRIMACK

On this 13th day of .2019 . before me, Kathy L. Hcward the

undersigned Officer, personally appeared Dennis T. Martino who acknowledged her/himself to be

the Secretary-Clerk of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., a corporation

and that she/he as such Secretary-Clerk being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument

for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

K^fehy J^fctary" Putrtic-,
Notary Public/Justice of the Reacer

Commission Expiration Date: kathy l. HOWARD Notary PubBc, nh
^  MyCommlaaionEipirMOctobar :7,2023



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

CORPORATE RESOLUTION

The Board of Directors of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc. authorizes the Executive Director, Deputy Director, Budget Analyst, Chief Accountant,
President, Vice-President(s) or Treasurer of the Agency to sign contracts and reports with the
State of New Hampshire, Departments of the Federal Government, which include all federal
#269 and #272 Forms, and public or private nonprofit agencies including, but not limited to, the
following:

•  Department of Administrative Services for food distribution programs
•  Department of Education for Nutrition programs
• Department of Health and Human Services

- Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services for elderly programs
- Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services for homeless/housing programs
- Division of Children, Youth, and Families for child care programs
- Division of Family Assistance for Community Services Block Grant
- Division of Public Health Services for public health programs

Department of Justice for child advocacy/therapy programs

Department of Transportation-Public Transportation Bureau for transportation programs
Public Utilities Commission for utility assistance programs
Workforce Opportunity Council for employment and job training programs
Department of Natural and Cultural Resources
New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) for Low Income Energy Assistance,
Weatherization, SEAS and Block Grant programs

New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority'
New Hampshire Secretary of State

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
U.S. Department of the Treasury - Internal Revenue Service

and other departments and divisions as required

This Resolution authorizes the signing of all supplementary and subsidiary documents
necessary to executing the authorized contracts as well as any modifications or amendments
relative to said contracts or agreements.

This Resolution was approved by the Board of Directors of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. on January 10, 2019, and has not been amended or revoked
and remains in effect as of the date listed below.

12/13/2019

Date Dennis T. Martino

Secretary/Clerk

SEAL
Agency Corporate Resolution 1/10/2019



/\CORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMJDO/YYYV)

12/11/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

CONTACT Karen Shaughnessy

(603)669-3218 (603)645^331

AmRFss' kshaughnessytgcrossagency.com

INSURER/S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICt

INSURER A- Fhiladeiphia ins Co
INSURED

Community Action Programs Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc.

P. 0. Box 1016

Concord NH 03302

INSURER B ■ Granite State Health Care and Human Services Self-
INSURERC: Federal InsCo 20281

INSURER 0 :

INSURER E:

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 19-20AIIUne8 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THATTHE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECTTO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECTTO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

"PSOCTIFT"
(MM/OO/YYYYI

POLICY exp
<MM/DD/YYYY1TYPE OF INSURANCE

aooL
IN80

\sfm
WVD POLICY NUMBER

INSR
LTR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE X^ OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE lb RENTED
PREMISES occufT»nca1

MED EXP (Any ona p«r»on)

PHPK2041343 10/01/2019 10/01/2020
PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENX AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER:

LOCX POUCY

OTHER:

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO

1,000,000

100,000

5.000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

ANYAUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE UMiT
(El ■cdawil

1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Par pirion)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2041342 10/01/2019 10/01/2020 BODILY INJURY (Pir iccidint)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Pw leddentl

Uninsured motorisl 1,000,000

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DED

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE 5,000,000

PHUB694692 10/01/2019 10/01/2020 5,000,000

X RETENTION i ̂0-000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS- UABIUTY
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Minditory In NH)
l( yi(, d«(^b« under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

XPER
STATUTE

OTH
ER

H HCHS20190000100 (3a.) NH 02/01/2019 02/01/2020 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 1,000,000

Directors & OfTicers Liability
Limit $1,000,000

82471794 04/01/2019 04/01/2020

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additienil Rainarfce Schedule, mty be itUched H more tpiee li required)

Confirmation of Coverage.

State of New Hampshire: Department of

Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORO 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



ACO#f£>* CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MMOO/YYYY)

01/07/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A IMATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poiicylies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsemenL A statement on

'  this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsemenUs).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Eirh Street

Manchester NH 03101

Karen Shaughnessy

(603)669-3218 (603)645^331

ATO^SS- l^^u6i^hessy(8)crossagency.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICa

INSURER A
Philadelphia Ins Co

INSURED

Community Action Programs Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc.

P.O. Box 1016

Concord NH 03302

INSURER B Granite State Health Care and Human Services Self-

INSURER C Federal ins Co 20281

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 19-20 GL.BA.UMB REVISION NUMBER:

TfJSft
LTO

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOVIW MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
P5u5YlFr POLICY EXP

TYPE OP INSURANCE

X

rTEiiim POLICY NUMBER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

GENT. AGGREGATE UMIT APPUES PER;

X POLICY □POLICY
PRO
JECT □

OTHER:

PHPK2041343

<MM/DO/YYYY)

10/01/2019

IMM/Dormno

10/01/2020

UMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE
BAMACETOREMTtD
PREMISES (E« t»cc>jrr>oc»l

MED EXP (Any on» pf»on)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG

1.000,000

100,000

5.000

1.000,000

3,000.000

3.000.000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

ANYAUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
fEa aecKlentl

S 1.000.000

BODILY INJURY (Par parsor»

OVWED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2041342 10/01/2019 10/01/2020 BOOILY INJURY (Par aeddant)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPar acddenti

Uninsured motorist % 1,000.000

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LlAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 5,000.000

PHUB694692 10/01/2019 10/01/2020 5,000.000

DEO X RETENTION S 10-0^
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY
ANY PROPRieTORff»ARTNER/EX£CLrnV£
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If ya», daaoriba un^
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH-
1S_

I f lY

0 HCHS202000000165 (3a) NH 02/01/2020 02/01/2021 E.L EACH ACCIDENT 1.000.000

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1,000.000

E.L DISEASE ■ POLICY LIMIT 1,000.000

Directors & OfTicers Liability
Limit; SI,000.000

82471794 04/01/2019 04/01/2020

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS' LOCATIONS 'VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Additional Remartu Sehadula. may bo atuchad H mora apace la raqulrad)

Confirmation of Coverage.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire: Department of
Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

0 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Phone (603) 225-3295

(800) 856-5525
Fax (603) 228-1898

Web www.bm-cap.org

Q

O
O

.r. ̂

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EMPOWIAIN* COUUUNITISa aiNCI «•••

2 Industrial Park Drive

P.O. Box 1016

Concord, NH

03302-1016

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The purpose the corporation includes providing assistance for the reduction of
poverty, the revitalization of low-income communities, and the empowerment of
low-income families and individuals to become fully self-sufficient through plaiming

and coordinating the use of a broad range of federal, state, local, and other assistance
(including private resources) related to the elimination of poverty; the organization

of a range of services related to the needs of low-income families and individuals, so

that these services may have a measurable and potentially major impact on the

causes of poverty and may help the families and individuals to achieve self-
sufficiency; the maximum participation of residents of the low-income communities

and members of the groups served to empower such residents and members to

respond to the unique problems and needs within their communities; and to secure a

more active role in the provision of services for private, religious, charitable, and

neighborhood-based organizations, individual citizens, and business, labor, and

professional groups, who are able to influence the quantity and quality of
opportunities and services for the poor.

(Approved by Agency Board of Directors on 02/24/05
as part of the Agency Bylaws.)
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ALTON
SwW CenW...._-i_

Mm Hetah0..
.•7S-710a
_.«7vin

BELMONT
twto Cwur ^^.2C7-M7
Htrfttoi Hrr, llaiii>w_aiMIOI

CONCORD
AnaCwur.
HMd «»"« ,._.Z24-A4t2
bdy HMd lurt _2M-«4t2
CcneefdAim

iiMiiiMivnMii rtuftrt
Concort Am 229-1M9
Horwhoe Aond Mece 2U MM
uMTJrm

. ■ W9rt(plmfc*«M»_.— Jai-230S
Cantoi

EPSOM
MMdOW ■fOOK H0Wkl«.-7»>tH0

FRANKUN
Am CiM«r_ ai4-M44
HMd Itan »4-iw
Euly HMd suft_
tMtarCArMr
KhMidiHaMlnQ.

UCONIA
Am
HMdS(«< S3d4IS4
tM(v HMd ttwt UA-EU4
StfMr C««*r.______5M-7»«
FwMy HtMlMo S24-t4S3
Workplaci tuccn* t34.4)«7

_.034-41S]
.U4-S340 MEREDITH

Am Cantf 779-4OM

NEWBURY
HnAivv CMTunen

Hewing_____ 7«S-03«e

SUNCOOK
Am CaMV.____.4(S-7a4
tanler CHiMr_____4B-4294

TILTON
Senior CdtMr ....... S774291

PEMBROKE
Mbg* tt Pen'difMi Perrm

Hewing..... 4«S4»43
WARNER

PITTSFIELD Am CwMr.__.__4S»-2707
lerter CAnter____4SS-*A«} H«MSUrt_____.4Sd-»0S
Heed S«*t______4$$-#eil Henh Mdge Hewing .4ld>33M
Eeriy Heed Sled..



Financial Statements

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2018 AND 2017

AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT
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PROFESSIONAL ASSOCLATION

CKRTIFIED PUBLIC ACCO'UNmNTS

WOLFKBORO • NOinU CONWAi'

A  • rs r. M I)0V1-R • CONCORDCommunity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. stratha;\i
Concord, New Hampshire

To the Board of Directors

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community, Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc; (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of
financial position as of February 28, 2018 and 2017, and the related statements of cash flows,
and notes to the financial statements for the years then ended, and the related statements of
activities and functional expenses for the year ended February 28, 2018.

Manaaeinent's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implenientation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of
February 28, 2018 and February 28, 2017, and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. i

Report on Summarized Comparative information
We have previously audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
2017 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated October 30, 2017. In our opinion, .the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of an'd for the year ended February 28, 201,7, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it was
derived.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additiorial procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 8, 2019, on our consideration of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 8, 2019



COMIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEBRUARY 28. 2018 AND 2017

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Investments

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land, buildings and Improvements
Equipment, furniture and vehicles

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Due from related party

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of notes payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Notes payable, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2018

1.751,685
2,993,405

26,567
88,287
98,753

4,958,697

4,634,220
6,227.722

10,861,942

6,936,808

3,925,134

139,441'

139,441 .

$  172,745
1.443,697

1,056,676
1,187,333

3,860.451

962.781

4,823,232

3,497,187-
702,853

4,200,040

2017

$  1,732,344
2,161,972

21,530
94,315
85.225

4.095.386

4.618,289
5,838,444

10,456,733

6,818.622

3,638,111

139.441

139.441

$  9,023,272 $ 7,872.938

$  163,753
847,707

1,019,426
1,159.331

3,190,217

1,151,156

4,341.373

2,887,454
644.111

^531,565

$ 9,023,272 $ 7,872,938

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2018

Unrestricted

Temporarily
Restricted

2018

Total

2017

Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards

Other funds

In-kind

United Way
Realized gain on sale of property

$ 17,935,847

1,538.501

1,147,978
30,517

$

2,870,131
$ 17,935,847..

4,408,632

1,147,978
30,517

$ 15,822,185

4,769,775

.1,100,528
43,751
20.250

Total revenues and other support 20,652,843 2,870,131 23,522,974 21,756,489

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS 2,811,389 (2,811,389)

Total 23,464,232 58,742 23,522,974 21,756,489

EXPENSES.

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Program services
Other costs

•Depreciation
In-kind

8,295,198

2,054.965
281,239

1,222,773
7,979,371

1,636.269

236,706
1,147,978

-

8,295,198

2,054,965
281,239

1,222,773
7,979,371

1,636.269
236,706

1,147,978

7.973.527

1,997,820

277,832

1,134,026
7,104,507
1,512,410

225,631
1.100.528

Total expenses 22,854,499 22,854,499- 21,326,281

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 609,733 58,742 668,475 430,208

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,887,454 644,111 3,531,565 3,101,357

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR $  3,497,187 $  702,853 $ 4,200,040 $  3,531,565

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2018 AND 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:

2018

668,475 $

2017

CASH BALANCE, END OF YEAR $  1,751,685

430,208

Depreciation 236,706 225,631
Gain on sale of property - (20,250)
(Increase) decrease in current assets:

Accounts receivable (831,433) 481,783
Inventory (5,037) 8,393
Prepaid expenses 6,028 6,609

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable 595,990 (335,107)
Accrued expenses 37,250 45.752
Refundable advances 28,002 37,296

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 735,981 880,315

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property (523,729) (127,048)
Investment In partnership (13,528) (12,919)
Proceeds from sale of property - 20,250

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (537,257) (119.717)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

;Repayment of long term debt (179,383) (152,251)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (179,383) (152,251)

NET INCREASE IN CASH 19,341 608,347

CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,732,344 1,123,997

1.732,344

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for interest 73,582 $ 109,150

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMWIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2018
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2017

2018 2017

Proaram Manaaement Total Total

Salaries and wages $  8,026.291 $ 268,907 $ 8,295,198 $ 7,973,527
Payroll taxes and benefrts 1,948.839 106,126 2,054,965 1,997,820
Travel 279.829 1,410 281,239 277,832
Occupancy 1,107.004 115,769 1,222,773 1,134,026
Program Services 7.979.371 - 7,979,371 7,104,507
Other costs;

Accounting fees 24,915 27,549 52,464 48,888
Legal fees 5,137 - 5,137 45,447
Supplies 236,553 26,718 263,271 259,191
Postage and shipping 49,153 1,052 50,205 55,100
Equipment rental and maintenance 1,680 - 1,680 5,503
Printing and publications 3,643 27,649 31,292 13,967
Conferences, conventions and meetings 13,730 9,544 23,274 27,628
interest 68,274 5,308 73,582 109,150
insurance 123,457 35,257 158,714 158,030
Membership fees 19,045 8,668 27,713 19,672
Utility and maintenance 185,882 64,390 250,272 - 123,416
Computer services 21,517 17,179 38,696 36,678
Other 645,081 14,888 659,969 609,740
Depreciation 231,959 4,747 236,706 ■ 225,631
in-kind 1,147,978 - 1,147,978 1,100,528

Total functional expenses $ 22,119,338 $ 735,161 $ 22,854,499 ■$ 21,326,281

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COIVIIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2018

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Community Action Program Belknap - Merrimack Counties, Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, living and support
needs of the low income and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services are provided with the financial support of various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) of the United States.

Financial Statement Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the FASB in its
Accounting Standard Codification No. 958 Financial Statements of Not-For-Profit
Organizations. Under FASB ASC No. 958, the Organization is required to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of
net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently
restricted net assets. The classes of net assets are determined by the presence or
absence of donor restrictions. As of February 28, 2018 the Organization had no
permanently restricted net assets and had temporarily restricted net assets of $702,853.

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information
in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's
financial statements for the year ended February 28, 2017, from which the summarized
information was derived.

Income Taxes

The Organization is organized as a nonprofit corporation and is exempt from federal
income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3). The Internal Revenue
Service has determined them to be other than a private foundation.

The Organization files information returns in the United States and the State of New
Hampshire. The Organization is no longer subject to examinations by tax authorities for
years before 2014.



Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accounting for Income Taxes,
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. The Organization has analyzed
its tax position taken on its information returns for the years (2014 through 2017), and
has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's financial statements.

Propertv

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a useful life in excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows;

Buildings.and improvements 40 years
Equipment, furniture and vehicles 3-7 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estirhates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at
times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with
respect to these accounts.

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor for future
periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently
restricted support, depending on the nature of the restriction. However, if a restriction is
fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the Organization reports
the support as unrestricted.

Contributed Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC No.
958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the services (a)
create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
othenvise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized as
contributions in the financial statements since the recognition criteria under FASB ASC
No. 958 were not met.



In-Kind Donations / Noncash Transactions
Donated facilities, services and supplies are reflected as revenue and expense in the
accompanying financial statements, if the criteria for recognition is met. This represents
the estimated fair value for the service, supplies and space that the Organization might
incur under normal operating activities. The Organization received $1,147,978 in
donated facilities, services and supplies for the year ended February 28, 2018 as
follows:

The Organization receives contributed professional services that are required to be
recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of these
services was determined to be $292,141 for the year ended February 28, 2018.

The Organization also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair
value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $846,237 for the year
ended February 28. 2018.

The Agency pays be|ow-market rent for the use of certain facilities. In accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the difference between amounts paid for the
use of the facilities and the fair market value of the rental space has been recorded as
an in-kind donation and as an in-kind expense in the accompanying financial
statements. The estimated fair value of the donation was determined to be $9,600 for
the year ended February 28, 2018.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the year ended February 28. 2018 totaled $32,655.

Inventory

Inventory consists of weatherization supplies and work in process and is valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value, using the first-in, first-out method.

2. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts

was estimated to be zero at February 28. 2018. The Organization has no policy for
charging interest on overdue accounts.

3. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed or
incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$1,187,333 as of February 28, 2018.



4. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers substantially all
employees. The cost of the plan is charged to programs administered by the
Organization. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 28, 2018 totaled
$202,725.

5. LEASED FACILITIES

Facilities occupied by the Organization for its community service programs are leased
under various operating leases. The lease terms range from month to month to twenty
years. For the year ended February 28, 2018, the annual lease expense for the leased
facilities was $479,964.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows:

Year Ended

February 28 Amount

2019 $  449,443
2020 405,088
2021 339,230
2022 88,762
2023 . 88,762

Thereafter 1.053.765

Total $ 2.425.050

6. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

The Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have earned and vested with the employees in the amount of $369,827 at February 28
2018.

7. BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the line) with a
bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments
based on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (4.50% for the year ended February 28,
2018) plus 1%, but not less than 6% per annum. The line is secured by all the
Organization's assets. There was no outstanding balance on the line at February 28,
2018.

8. LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt consisted of the following as of February 28, 2018:

5.75% note payable to a financial institution in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $13,912 through July
2023. The note is secured by property of the Organization for
Lakes Region Family Center. $ 773,551
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3.00% note payable to the City of Concord for leasehold
improvements in monthly installments for principal and interest
of $747 through May 2027. The note is secured by property of
the Organization for the agency administrative building
renovations. 71,843

7.00% note payable to a bank in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $4,842 through May 2023. The note is
secured by a first real estate mortgage and assignment of rents
and leases on property located in Concord, New Hampshire for
Early Head Start. 290.132

Total 1,135,526
Less amounts due within one year 172.745

Long term portion $ 962.781

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of February 28, 2018 were as follows:

Year Ending
Februarv 28 Amount

2019 $ 172,745
2020 183,269
2021 194,445
2022 206,317

2023 281,158

Thereafter 97.592

$  1J 35.526

9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of February 29, 2018:

Land $ 168.676
Building and improvements 4,465,544
Equipment and vehicles 6.227.722

10,861,942

Less accumulated depreciation 6.936.808

Property and equipment, net £ 3.925.134

Depreciation expense for the year ended February 28, 2018 was $236,706.

11



10. CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization
might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any. have not been determined or assessed
as of February 28, 2018. ^

During the year ended February 28, 2018, the Corporation for.National and Community
Service (CNCS) conducted a monitoring of its program and found that the Organization
was not in full compliance with the program requirements. As a result, CNCS
disallowed $37,000 of grant expenditures. The Organization returned the funds in full
during April 2018.

11. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For-the year ended February 28, 2018, approximately $11,000,000 (47%) of the
Organization's total revenue was received from the Department of Health and Human
Services. The future scale and nature of the Organization is dependent upon continued
support from this department.

12. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

At February 28, 2018, temporarily restricted net assets consisted of the following
unexpended, purpose restricted donations:

Restricted Purpose

Senior Center $ 127,746
Elder Services 390,089
NH Rotary Food Challenge 5,067
Common Pantry 5,912
Community Crisis 3,578
Caring Fund 14,272
Agency-FAP 14,746
Agency-H/S 140,978
Other Programs 4^

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organization is related to the following corporation as a result of common
management:

Related Partv Function

CAPBMC Development Corporation Real Estate Development

12



There was $139,441 due from CAPBMC Development Corporation at February 28,
201.8.

The Organization serves as the management agent for the following organizations:

Related Party Function

Belmont Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Epsom Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Alton Housing for the Elderly, Inc. HUD Property
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly, Inc. HUD Property
Newbury Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Kearsarge Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Riverside Housing Corporation HUD Property
Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership Low Income Housing Tax Credit Property
Twin Rivers Community Corporation Property Development
Ozanam Place, Inc. Transitional Supportive Services
TRCC Housing Limited Partnership I Low Income Housing Tax Credit Property

The services performed by the Organization included, marketing, accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD properties), HUD compliance (for the HUD properties), and
maintenance of property.

The total amount due from the related parties (collectively) at February 28, 2018 was
$114,032 and is included in accounts receivables.

14. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year financial statements have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year.

15. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUIVIENTS

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has also invested money
relating to its Fix-it program in certain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds
totaled $97,753 at February 28, 2018.

ASC Topic No. 825-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value
which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework
in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which
emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific
measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair value measurements.
In accordance with FASB ASC 820, the Organization may use valuation techniques
consistent with market, income and cost approaches to measure fair value. As a
basis for considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements,
FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used
in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1
measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of
the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows:
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Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in active
markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market prices
in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the
reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of models or other
valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in situations
where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and the reporting
entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of the asset or
liability including assumptions regarding risk.

At February 28, 2018, the Organization's investments were classified as Level 1 and were
based on fair value.

Fair Value Measurements using Significant Observable Inputs (Level 11

Beginning balance - mutual funds $ 84,225
Total gains (losses) - realized /unrealized 9,528
Purchases 4.000

Ending Balance - mutual funds $ 97.753

The carrying amount of cash, current assets, other assets and current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

The Organization invested $1,000 during the year ended February 28, 2018 in a
Partnership, The Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health.

16. FISCAL AGENT

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. acts as the fiscal agent
for the following community organizations: Franklin Community Services Building
(Franklin), the Common Pantry (Laconia), the Caring Fund (Meredith), the NH Food
Pantry Coalition, the NH Rotary Food Challenge and FGP/SCP Association Region 1.
The Agency provides the management and oversight of the revenues received
(donations) and the expenses (utilities, food and emergency services).

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date, but before the financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, including the
estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Non-recognized
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist
at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has
evaluated subsequent events through January 8, 2019, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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(See Independent Auditors' Report)



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BFLKNAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES tNC

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDmjRES.OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2018

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PROGRAM TITLE

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

H«ad Stan

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
Low Income Home Energy Aasislance Program-WX
Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program-HRRP

Community Services Block Grant

Social Services Block Grant-Home OeHvered S Congregate
Social Services Block Grant-Service Link

TANF CLUSTER

Temporary Assistance for Needy Famatles-Fatrily Planr^
Temporary Assistance for Needy Famililes-Workplace Success

AGING CLUSTER

Title III, Pan B-Senior Trartsporadon
Title III. PanB-SEAS

Title III. Pan C-Congregats Meah
TKie III. Pan C-Home DeSverad
NSIP

CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT FUND aUSTER

CftBd Care S Development Bloefc Grant
Clild Care Mandatory S Malehlng Funds 0/ the CCDF

MEDtCAlO auSTER

MedtcN Asslstancs PrograrrvVeterans Independent Proiram

PamBy Ptannlng - Services
HIV Prevematkre Activtties - Health Dept. Based-FamBy Planning

MATERNAL. INFANT, AND EARLY CHILDHOOD HOME VISITING CLUSTER
ACA - Maternal. Infant. S Early ChBdhood Home Siting Program

Maternal & ChBd Health Services Block Grant (0 the States
National FamBy Careglvaf Support. Title III. Pan E-Servlce Link
Special Programs (or Aging. THIs fV-Service Link
CMS Research Demonstrations S Evaluations

Madcare EnroBmant Asslslanee Program

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Special Suppl. NiArltion Pro^am lor Woman. Infants & ChBdran

Senior Farmers Maricet

Child A Adult Cere Food Program

CHILD NUTRITION CLUSTER

Summer Food Service Program For Cfddran

CFDA

NUMBER

93.e00

93.568

93.568

93.568

93.667

93.667

93.558

93.558

93.044

93.044

93.045

93.045

93.053

93.575
93.596

93.217

93.940

93.505

93.994

93.052

93.048

93.779

93.071

10.557

10.57$

10.558

PASS THROUGH NAME

10.559

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Fedsral Awards

IS

Stale of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire
Slate of New Hampshire

Stale of New Hampshire

Slate of New Hampshire
Stele of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire
Southern New Hampshira Setvicas

Stale of New Hampshiro
Stata of New Hampshira
State of New Hampshire
Slate of New Hampshire
Stats of New HampsMre

State of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire

Gateways Community Services

State of New Hampehire
Stats of New Hampshire

Slate of New Hampshire

Stats of New Hampshira
Stats of New Hempshire
Stata of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampsliire

State of New Hampshire

Stats of New Hampsfdre

IDENTtFYlNG NUMBER

01 CH2OS2-O34}1/01 CH2052-04-01

G-16/17B1NHUEA

G-16/17B1NHUEA

G-16/17B1NKLIEA

TOTAL

G-1781NHCOSR

05-95-4B-4810I0-92SS
545-500367

TOTAL

05-05-45-4S0010-6146
05-9S-4S-4SO01O-S127DOO0

aUSTER TOTAL

05-85-48-481010-7872

6-16/17B1NHUEA

05-95-48^1010-7872

05-95-48-481010-7672
1058477

CLUSTER TOTAL

CLUSTER TOTAL

05-05-80-90201D8S30

U62PS0036S5

05-95-90-902010-0831

05-95-90-902010-5190

102-500731

102-S00731

102-500731

102-500731

HH3 TOTAL

151S4NH743W5003

1S154NH083YB303

NONE PROVIDEO

NONE PROVIDEO

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

4,115.021

PASSED THROUGH

TO SUB-RECIPIENTS

3,824.932

113.069

253.291

4,191.292

573.108

285.652
8.920

294.772

29.305
244.177

273.482

138211

5.678

195.896

395,028
259.389

994202

377,106

26.102

403208

37.029

81.401

6,779

100.416

10.431

40852

24.551

16.618

9.188

11.173260

743,425

79203

237.797

157.463

Continued



FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PROGRAM TITLE

FOOO DISTRIBUTION CLUSTER

Commodty Sipplemenlal Food Program
Emargertcy Food Assistanca PrograrrvAdnMstratlon
Emargariey Food Aaslstanca Program

CORPORATION FOR WATWWAL A COMMUNITY SERVICES

FOSTER CRANOPAREMTS«ENIOR COMPANION CLUSTER
Sartor Compwtlon Program

US OEPARTMEKT OF TRANSPORTATION

Formuls Granb for Rural Araaa-Concord Tratsll
Fonnula Grand (or Rural Areaa-Wlnrtpasaukaa Ttarvii

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER

Enhancad MobHtty of Sanlora & Irtd. W/DlsabBUaa-CAT
Enhancad Mobfitty of Seidora A Ind. W/DISBbBiiaaOlT

Enhancad MoUlty of Sardora A byj. W/DbabBUes-Rural Trardportstion
Enhancad MoUlty of Sardora A Ind. W/OlsabCUa»-Rural Trartsportation
Enhancad MobUty of Sartora A Ind. W/DlsabUaa-Valurtaar Orivan

US OEPARTMEKT OF HOUStNO AND URBAN PeVELQPMBNT

Supportva Housing ProgranvOutreach
SupgortNa Housing Progtam-Homalasa
Suppordva Housing Program

Etnargsncy Sdutlorts Grant

Conikanrm of Cara Program

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Waatharlzatlon Assbtanca for Low Incoma Peraons

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Sartor Community Servlca Employmant Pro^am

WIA/WlOA CLUSTER

WIAAVlOA ■ AduO Program
WIA/WlOA - Dialocatad Worliar Formula Grants

17.258
17.278

CentiniMd

CFDA FEDERAL PASSED THROUGH

NUMBER PASS THROUGH NAME IDENTIFYING NUMBER EXPEK0ITURE8 TO SUB-RECIPIENTS

10.565 Stale of New Hampstdra 1S154NH814V8005 724.422 $ 535.805

10.568 Slats of New Hatnpahirs 81750000 161,212
10.569 State of Naw Hampshlra 817SOOOO 1.562.630 1.562.630

CLUSTER TOTAL 2.466.264 i 2,098.435

USOA TOTAL s 3.666^52

94.016. 16SCANH001 s 350.074

CNCSTOTAL ,  $ 350,074

20.509 State of New HampshiraOepartnant of Trartsportation NH-1B-»>46 t 532.699
20.509 Slats of Nmt HampshiraOspatlmsnl rt Transportation NH-180C046 16J00

TOTW. 549.399

20.513 Stats of Now Hampstdr»Oapsrtmar« of Transportation NH-18-X043 9.130

20.513 State of Naw Hanipshlr»OepBrtmant of Tranaportatioo Bus 1605 Htd 1606 94.926

20.513 State of New HampahlraOapartmanl of Transportation NH-16-X043 74.764

20.513 State of New HampsidreOepanmsni of Trartsportation 2 buses 118.575
20S13 Manlmack County NH65-X001 72668

CLUSTER TOTAL 370.281

DOT TOTAL s 919.680

14J235 State of New Hanpsldra 0565-42-423010-7927-102.500731 5 68.692

14.235 State of Naw Hampshire NONE PROVIOEO 27.968

14.235 State of Naw Hampshlra 05-e5-42-423010-7B27-102-500731 89.762

TOTAL 206.442

14.231 State of Naw Hampshlra 0595-42-423010-7927-102-500731 53.911

14.267 Slate of Naw Hampshlra 05-9542-423010-7927-102-500731 93,044

HUD TOTAL 5 353697

State of Naw Hampshlta

Staia of New HampsMra

Southern New Hampshire Sarvleas
Southern Naw Hampahira Sarvlcas

EE0006169

DOE TOTAL

0510-5S360000-102-500731

051 (VS3360000-102.500731

CLUSTER TOTAL

DOL TOTAL

TOTAL

S 167.695

s 167.695

$ 395.620

71634
68.341

139.675

t 535.295

1 17605.653 2.WS.43S

Saa Notes to ths Sehadula of Expandtturas of Fadtral Avrards
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COIVIIVIUNiTY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. INC

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2018

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended February 28, 2018. The information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal . course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has elected not to
use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD COMMODITIES

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.
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COIVIIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES IMP.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 28, 2018, and
the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated January 8, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Beiknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement,
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

d-es'ne.. fKeS^G^fUfjjLL. i A(»iu^ntL-

Concord, New Hampshire
January 8, 2019
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COIVIMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIIVIACK
STRATIIAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON GOMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Haimpshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Community Action Prograrri Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance
with the types of conipliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement \haX
could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended February 28, 2018.
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs based on bur audit of the
types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America: the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200. Uniform Administrative Requirements,- Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended February
28,2018.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. is responsible
for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance In
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties.
Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 8, 2019
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COIVKVIUNIITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-IVIERRIMACK COUNTIES. INn

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2018

SUIVIIVIARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements
of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., which would be-required to be reported in
accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
On Intemal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all
major programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs include;
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Low Income Home Energy Assistance
Program 93.568, Head Start 93.600, Corporation for National and Community Service,
Senior Companion Program, 94.016

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was determined to be a low-
risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SUSAN M.WNUK

Kxperience

1992 to Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Present Director, Community Health and Nutrition Services

■ Responsible for overall management of the WIG, Breastfeeding Peer Counseling
Program, Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program and Commodity Supplemental
Food Program, Family Planning, Prenatal, Teen Clinic, and Concord Area Public
Health Network

■ Oversee planning, development, implementation and coordination of all program
services and personnel for multiple programs and clinic locations

■  Fiscal management including budget preparation, monitoring, fundraising, and reports
for $1.6 million operating budget

■ Oversee special grant projects including Lead Screening and Oral Health initiatives.
■ Development and implementation of policies and procedures
■ Oversee quality improvements plans for all program services
■ Responsible for grant management and report preparation
■ Represents agency on local Boards of Directors, Coalitions, and Partnerships

1991-1992 Director, Family Planning, Prenatal, STD Clinics and HIV Counseling and Testing Services
■  Initiated development and implementation of comprehensive Prenatal program clinical

services in Belknap County for low-income women
■  Integrated all program services to provide access to comprehensive care

1989-1992 Director, Family Planning, STD Clinics and HIV counseling and Testing Services
■ Coordinated development of STD Clinic Services in three County area including

obtaining initial grant funding
■  Fiscal, personnel, program management of all services

1987-1989 Director, Family Planning and HIV Counseling and Testing Services
■ Obtained grant funding to initiate development of HIV Counseling and Testing

Services

■  Integrated services into Family Planning Clinic

1986-1987 Family Planning Program Director
■  Responsible for the overall fiscal, programmatic and personnel management of a Title

X funded Family planning program in a three County area.
■  Initiated program development activities and expansion of services

1980-1985 Concord Hospital, Concord New Hampshire
Social Worker - Social Services Department

■ Evaluation of emotional, social and economic stresses of illness.
■ Developed patient care plans including financial assessment, discharge planning needs,

home supports, and transfer for patients in maternity/newborn nursery, ICU,
nephrology/dialysis, and urology units.

■  Liaison between medical staff, patient, families and community agencies.
■ Coordinated adoptions with public and private organizations.
■  Provided assessments for guardianships hearings.
■  Initiated protective service referrals for infants, children and seniors.
■ Coordinated transfers to skilled, intermediate level nursing homes, group homes, and

facilities providing traumatic head injury and spinal cord care.



SUSAN M.WNUK PAGE 2

Education

1977 Massachusetts College of Liberal Arts
North Adams, MA

Bachelor of Arts Degree Majors: History and Sociology

Professional Associations

Board of Directors and Committees

■  National WIC Association

Board of Directors 2013- present
Chair - Local Agency Section of 7 USDA defined Regions 2016-17
Northeast Region Local Agency Representative 2013- present
NH Representative to Local Agency Section 2010-present
NWA/USDA Food and Nutrition Services - Verification of Certification Task Force - Local Agency
Representative 2015-16

■  National Commodity Supplemental Food Program Association
President Board of Directors 2011

Vice President Board of Directors 2010

Marketing Committee- Chair 2012-2014
Board of Directors Local Agency Representative 1999-2000

■  New Hampshire WIC Directors Association - 1992-Presenl
Chairperson 2010-present
Secretary 2000-2008

■  NH Hunger Solutions Coalition 2011 -present
NH Roadmap to End Childhood Hunger

■  Health First Family Care Center - Board of Directors January 2009-present
■  Partnership for Public Health - Board of Directors 2005-2015
■  Winnipesaukee Public Health Council - Executive Committee 2014 to present
■  Capital Area Public Health Network - Public Health Advisory Council Executive Committee 2014-

present

■  Upper Valley Hunger Council -2015 to present.
■  Public Health Council of the Upper Valley-2014 to present

HEAL and Oral Health Committees - 2016 to present
■  Central New Hampshire Health Care Partnership - Founding member 2008-present
■  HEAL- Statewide Practice Committee - 2009-2012

Lakes Region HEAL - 2009-present
CCNTR HEAL - 2009-2012

■  Bi-State Primary Care Association - Operations and Government Relations Committee 2004-present
m  Whole Village Family Resource Center - Board of Directors 1995-2000

Chair Personnel Committee 1996-2000

■  Capital Area Wellness Coalition - 2010-present
Healthy Foods Subcommittee

Government Task Forces and Legislative Committees

■  Legislative Task Force on Perinatal Substance Abuse - 1993-2002
■  Legislative Study Committee on Premature Births- 1991
■  Attorney General's Task Force on Child Abuse and Neglect - 1990-1993

Memberships

■  National WIC Association - 1994-Present

■  New Hampshire Public Health Association - 1993-Present
■  National Family Planning and Reproductive Health Association - 1986-Present

Community & x^olunteer

Bow School District Wellness Committee - 2004-present

Bow POPS (Parents of Performing Arts Students) 2005-2010 - Vice President 2009-2010
Boys Indoor Soccer Team - Coach - 2008-2010



Thomas M. Fritschka

Warehouse Manager 2008 - present
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program Concord, NFl

•  Responsible for receiving packaging and distributing government food for low income elderly in the state of
New Hampshire.

•  Scheduling food deliveries from the USDA.
•  Utilizing the forklift to organize and maintain the warehouse when packaging arrives.

Service Manager 2005-2008
Concord Motorcycle Concord, NH

•  Responsible for scheduling customers for service repairs, schedule assembly of new vehicles for display
and delivery for the sales department, handling customer complaints and issues, and allocating work to
service technicians.

•  Responsible for researching and identifying parts necessary to complete repairs and m
•  Submit all computerized and paper claims to manufacturers' and handle the accompanying follow ups.
•  Responsible for maintenance of both company vehicle and forklift.
•  Responsible for the daily operation of the service department and the supervision of all service department

employees.

Assistant Parts Manager/Service Writer 2004-2005
Belknap Subaru Belmont, NH

•  Responsible for parts ordering, invoicing and shipping of parts to customers through internet and phone
orders.

•  Supplying parts to technicians as needed.
•  Checking and stocking all incoming parts orders.
• Writing up and invoicing both service customers and internal service work.
•  Handling parts and service customer calls.

Sales Manager then Service Manager 1996-2003
Freedom Honda Suzuki (No longer in business) Belmont, NH

•  Responsible for scheduling customers for service repairs, scheduling assembly of new vehicles for display
and delivery for the sales department, handling customer complaints and problems, and allocating work to
service technicians.

•  Researching and identifying parts necessary to complete repairs getting that information to the parts
department for ordering.

•  Submit all computerized and paper claims to manufacturers' and handle the accompanying follow ups.
•  Responsible for tracking sales for a management group, sales follow-up, the turnover of sales opportunities,

and the overall efficiency of the sales department.



Education

Oxbow High School Graduated 1985
Bradford, VT

Skills:

Windows 7

Microsoft Outlook

Internet Explorer and Mozilla Firefox
Computer submission of warranty claims

Experience in the parts and finance/insurance department
ADP and Wallace Dealership Software

CDL Driver

Forklift operation



Department of Health and Human Services

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Commodity Supplemental Foods Program (CSFP) and
Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program (SFMNP)

July 1,2017-June 30, 2021

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary
% Paid

from this

Contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Susan M. Wnuk

Director, Community Health &

Nutrition Services $66,866 59.99% $40,113.82

Thomas Fritschka Warehouse Manager $41,067 100% $38,142.00



\

Jeffrey A. Meyerj
Comtnbsioner

Lisa M. Morris

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D! VISION OF PUBLIC MEAL TH S£R VICES

29 HAZCN DRIVE, CONCORD, NK 03301
603.271-4501 1-800.852.3345 Ext. 4501

Fax; 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhh5.nh.gov

February 6, 2019

4

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
ar^d the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health Services, to
amend an existing contract with Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. (Vendor
#177203-8003), 2 Industrial Park Drive. Concord, NH 03302. for the provisions of a Commodity
Supplemental Food Program (CSFP) and a Senior Farmers' Market Nutrition Program (SFMNP)
statewide, by decreasing the price limitation by $170,707 from $1,680,610 to $1,509,903 with no
change in the completion date of September 30, 2021, effective upon Governor and Executive. Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original agreement was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 21,
2017, (Item #49).and amended on May 2, 2018 (Item #5B)

Funds to suppbrt this request are available in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2020, 2021 and 2022 upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in,future operating budgets.

05-95-90-902010-52600000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES,
WIC SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION PROGRAM

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018
102-

500734

Contracts for

Program Svc
90006007 $31.5,000.00 $0.00 $315,000.00

2018
102-

500734

Contracts for

Program Svc
90006024 $1,400.00 $0.00 $1,400.00

2018
520-

500381

FMNP Food

Costs
90006025 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Subtotal $316,400.00 $0.00 $316,400.00



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2019
102-

500734

Contracts for

Program Svc
90006007 $315,000.00 ($52,525.00) $262,475.00

2019
102-

500734
Contracts for

Program Svc
90006024 $8,400.00 $0.00 $8,400.00

2019
520-

500361

FMNP Food

Costs
90006025 $77,065.00 $0.00 $77,065.00

Subtotal $400,465.00 ($52,525.00) $347,940.00

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2020
102-

500734

Contracts for

Program Svc
90006007 $315,000.00 ($52,525.00) $262,475.00

2020
102-

500734

Contracts for

Program Svc
90006024 $8,400.00 $0.00 $8,400.00

2020
520-

500361

FMNP Food

Costs
90006025 $77,065.00 $0.00

VJ

$77,065.00

Subtotal $400,465.00 ($52,525.00) $347,940.00

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2021
102-

500734

Contracts for

.  Program Svc 90006007 $315,000.00 ($52,525) $262,475.00

2021
102-

500734

Contracts for

Program Svc
90006024 $8,400.00 $0.00 $8,400.00

.  2021
520-

500361

FMNP Food

Costs
90006025 $77,065.00. $0.00 .$77,065.00

Subtotal $400,465.00 ($52,525) $347,940.00

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2022
102-

500734

Contracts for

Program Svc 90006007 $78,750.00 ($13,132) $65,618.00

2022
102-

500734

Contracts for

Program Svc 90006024 $7,000.00 $0.00 $7,000.00
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2022
520-

500361

FMNP Food

Costs
90006025 $77,065.00 $0.00 $77,065.00

Subtotal $162,815.00 ($13,132) $149,683.00

TOTAL: $1,680,610.00 ($170,707.00) $1,509,903.00

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to initiate a reduction in the Commodity Supplemental Food
Program due to a federal funding decrease. Additionally, the Senior Farmers Market Program offers
individuals the ability for to access bundles of fresh food from local farms. Currently, seniors can
receive a bundle of food worth $18.00. However, the Department is requesting the amount of fresh
food bundle values to increase by $2.00 from $18.00 to $20.00. Jhis two-dollar increase will not require
an increase in the contract price limitation and will only affect the amount of food in each bundle that a
senior can receive.

Services in this agreement include a statewide Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and a
statewide Senior Farmers' Market Nutrition Program available to eligible clients. These programs work
to improve the health of low-income elderly persons at least sixty (60) years of age by supplementing
their diets with nutritious foods year round and fresh fruits and vegetables in the summer.

Approximately 4,000 individuals will be served annually from January through December.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided
after June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the
Slate Legislature and funds encumbered for the State Fiscal Years 2020-2021 and 2022-2023 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, low-income elderly
persons may not receive an additional $2.00 increase per bundle when receiving fresh fruits and
vegetables during the summer months to supplement their diets.

Area Served; Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Agriculture, CFDA#
10.565, FAIN# 184NH814Y8005



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable'Council
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In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Deparlmenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Fanners Market Nutrition Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program

This 2"^ Amendment to the Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program contract (hereinatter referred to as "Amendment #2") dated this 2"^ day of October,
2018, Is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties. Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a
place of business at 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord. NH 03302.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21. 2017. (Item 49), and amended on May 2. 2018 (Item 5B).''the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the terms and conditions of
the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37; General Provisions. Paragraph IB. and Exhibit B, Method and
Conditions of Payment. Paragraph 8, the parties may modify the payment schedule and adjust budget
line items of the contract upon written agreement; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to adjust budget line items to reduce the price limitation due to a reduction
in federal funding, with no changes to the scope of work; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,509,903.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

4. Delete and replace the following;

4.1. Exhibit 8-2, Budget with Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2, Commodity Supplemental Food Program.

4.2. Exhibit B-3, Budget with Exhibit B-3, Amendment #2, Commodity Supplemental Food Program.

4.3. Exhibit B-4. Budget with Exhibit 8-4, Amendment #2, Commodity Supplemental Food Program.

4.4. Exhibit B-5, Budget with Exhibit B-5, Amendment #2. Commodity Supplemental Food Program.

5. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

Community Action Program Amendment *2
Betkr^ap-AterrimacX Counties. lr>c.
RFP.20ie-DPHS-12-COMMO-Ol Page 1 of3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Sonior Fanners Market Nutrition Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Department of Health and Human Services
approval, IN WITNESS WHEREOF; the parties have set their hands as of the date written below

Date

State of New Hampshire
Departrrfent of Heilth and Human Services

Lisa Morris MSS
Director

jL//I-/
Date

Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

Name:
Title:

Steven E. Gregoirc
Budget Analyst

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of New Hampshire . County of Merrimack
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name Is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacit>/4jndicated above.

on 1/18/2019 . before the

I':
laiure of Notaiv Public or JustiSignature of Not^iv Public or Justice of the Peace

y lames Sudak.'.] ustice of the Peace
'• Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: icotttnuiii in

Community Actkm ProgrBm
Bdknap-Mertlmadc Counties. Inc.
RFP.20ie-DPHS.12-COMMO-Ol

Amendment IQ

Page 2 or 31



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

oZte 7 Name:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approven by the Govenhorand Executive Council Of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name;

Title:

Community Action Program
Bencnap-Merrimacfc Counties. Inc.
RFP.201$-OPHS-12-C0MM(>01

Amendment P2

Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations wrfiere persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information" or 'Confidential'Data" means ail confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accouritability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Last update l(V09/i8 Exhibit K Contractor Initiab
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

OHMS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology-., or^j^^jd^legale as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by rheans of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

/

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C F R §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined urider this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V5.UslupdaJelCV09n8 Ejirtbll K Contradof liVtiata
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must hot disclose PHI in violation of such' additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

*

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained'under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6v The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, ttie Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

I

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Sen/ice. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply.with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wtiole. must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sut>-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall l>e rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanltizatlon. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for Stale of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an intemal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sulvcontractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security, breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations {45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htni
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire networtc.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and t>eing
sent to and l>eing received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

vs. L«l update 10/09/18 ExhiytK Contractor InlUab
DHHS Informalion

Security Requirements
Page 7oi9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is

physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door jocks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any

derivative files containing personally identifiable Information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data •
is disposed of in accordance v^th this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 308. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor wilt;

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved In Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

vs. Last update 10/09/16 0dtiblt K Contractor tniiials.
DHHS mrormailon

Security Requirements
Page 8 of 9 Date il'sh



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine wtiether Breach notification is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibil K Contraciof tntUats
OHHS infcxmation

Security Requirements
Page 9 or 9 Date
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DimiON OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

JclTrty A. Mrytn 29 HAZE.N DRIVE; CONCORD. NH 03MI
CoBBteieetr 603-271-4501 1-8D04S2-3345 EiL 4501

Fii: 603-271-4027 TDD Acccu: 1-800-735-2904
Ua M. Merrti www.dhbs-Rb^OV

Dlmler

March 8. 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health Sen/ices, to
amend an existing contract with Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (Vendor
#177203-8003), 2 Industrial Park Drive. Concord. NH 03302, to add Federally-mandated Civil Rights
assurance language to the original agreement for the provisions of a Commodity Supplemental Food
Program (CSFP) and a Senior Farmers' Market Nutrition Program (SFMNP) statewide, with no change
to the price limitation not to exceed $1,680,610 and no change to the end date of September 30, 2021,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. The original agreement was approved by the
Governor and Executive Council on June 21. 2017. Item #49. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2020, 2021 and 2022 upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in future operating budgets.

See Attached Fiscal Details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this amendment request is to add Federally-mandated Civil Rights assurance
lar^guage to the original agreement in accordance with a Federal audit conducted on September 28.
2017. with no change to the funding in this agreement.

Senrices in this agreement include a statewide Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and a
statewide Senior Farmers' Market Nutrition Program available to eligible clients. These programs work
to improve the heatth of low-income elderly, persons at least sixty (60) years of age by supplementing
their diets with nutritious foods year round and fresh fruits and vegetables in the summer.

In accordance with FNS Instruction 113-1 Section X. State Agencies must obtain written
assurartce from local agencies or other sub-recipients that receive Federal financial assistance for the
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and the Senior Farmer's Market Nutrition Program. The
^statement of Civil Rights assurance must be incorporated into each State Agency arxl sub-recipient
agency agreements. The statement assures that the entity to receive financial assistance will operate
in compliance with all nortdiscriminatlon laws, regulations, instructions, policies and guidelines.



His Exceltencyi Govemor<Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl*

Page 2 of 2

1

The following performance measures/objectives are used to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement:

•  The percentiof-low>income seniors enrolled In CSFP
•  The percent of towMncome seniors receiving SFMNP during summer distribution months
•  The percent of low^ncome seniors receiving nutrition edilcation material highlighting the

health benefits of CSFP and SFMNP foods

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30. 2019. and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided
after June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the
State Legislature and funds encumbered for the State Fiscal Years 2020-2021 and 2022-2023 btennia.

Should: the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, lov^ncome elderly
persons may not have access to nutritious foods or fresh fruits and vegetables to supplement their
diets because the federally funded program may not be able to continue operations.

Area Served: Statewide

Source-of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Agriculture. CFDA#
10.565. FAIN# 184NH81.4y8005

In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully si^mltted.

Ltsa moms

Dir^or

Approved by: \\ I (
Jsfjey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department ofHealth and Human Services'Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citixens to achieve health and independence.



NH Department of Health & Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market Nutrition

Program (RFP.20ia-DPHS-12-COMMO-01)

FISCAL DETAILS

0$-95-SO-902010-52600000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES. HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF POPULATION
HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES. WIC SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION PROGRAM

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TIJLE
ACTIVITY

CODE
AMOUNT

2018 102-500734 Contracts for Proaram Svc 90006007 $315,000.00
2018 102-500734 Contracts for Proqram Svc 90006024 $1,400.00
2018 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 SO.OO

Subtotal $316,400.00

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE
AMOUNT

2019 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006007 $315,000.00
2019 102-500734 Contracts for Proqram Svc 90006024 $8,400.00
2019 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 $77,065.00

Subtotal $400,465.00

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE
AMOUNT

2020 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006007 $315:000.00
2020 102-500734 Contracts for Proqram Svc 90006024 $8,400.00
2020 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 $77,065.00

Subtotal $400,465.00

.  STATE
FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE
AMOUNT

2021 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006007 $315,000.00
2021 102-500734- Contracts for Program Svc .  90006024 $8,400.00
2021 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 $77,065.00

Subtotal $400,465.00

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE
AMOUNT

2022 102-500734 Contracts for Proaram Svc 90006007 $78,750.00
2022 102-500734 Contracts for Proaram Svc 90006024 $7,000.00
2022 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 $77,065.00

Subtotal $162,815.00

TOTAL: $1,680,610.00



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Sopplomontfll Foods Program and Senior Farmora Marttot Notfltlon Program

State of Now Hanipshlro
Departnwnt of Haalth and Human Oarvlcea

Amandmantei

Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmora lUftot Nutrttlon Program

This Amendment to the Commodity Supplemental Foods Program end Senior Farmers Market Nutrition
Program contract (horeinafter referred to as 'Amendment 01 *) dated thb 22 day of February, 2018, Is by and
between the Statepf New Hampshire. Department of Health and Hun^an Services (hereirtafter referred to as the
"State" or "Depedment") er>d C^munity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., (hereinafter referred
to as "the Contractor"), a non-prcfn corporation with a place of busir>ess at 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord. NH
03302.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June
21.2017, Item 49, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms end cortodions specified
In the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums spedfted; end

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment schedules
end terms and conditions of the contract; and '

\

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions. Paragraph 16, the State may modify the scope of work and the
payment schedule of the contract by written agreement of the parties;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to modify the scope of services.

NOW THEREFORE. In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants arto conditions contained In the
Contract end set torto herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read: E. Maria Relnemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement

2. Amend Form P-37. Block 1.10 to read: 603-271-9330

3. Amend Exhibit A, Scope of Services, to add Section 6. Compliance, to reed:

6. COMPUANCE

6.1 The Contractor hereby agrees that It will cornply wth Trtle VI of the CMI Rlgl^ Act of 1^ (42
U.S.C. 20(X)d et seq.). Title IX of the Education Amendmentsof 1972 (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq.).
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794). Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42
U.S.C. 6101 et seq.); Title 11 and Title III of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 68
amended by the ADA Amendment Act of 2008 (42 U.S.C. 12131-12189) as implemented by
Department of Justice regulations at (28 CFR Parts 35 and 36); Executive Order 13166,
'Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency.' (August 11.2(XX}), all
provisions required by the Implementing regulations of the U.S. Department of Agriculture (7 CFR
Part 15 et seq); and FNS directives end guideSnes to the effect that no person shall, on the grourid
of race, color, national origin, age, sex, or disability, be excluded from participation in. be denied
the benefits of. or otherwise be subjected to discrimrnation under any program or activity for which
the Contr^or receives Federal financial assistance from FNS: end hereby gives assurance that it
will immediately take measures necessary to effectuate tots agreement.

6.2 By providing this assurance, the Contractor agrees to compile data, maintain records and submit
records and reports as requtrad to permit effective enforcement of the iKmdiscrimlnation laws, and
to permit Department personnel during normal working hours to review and copy such records,
books end accounts, access such facilities, end interview such personnel as needed to ascertain
compBance with toe non-discrimination taws. If there are any vioiations of this assurance, the
Department of Agriculture shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this assurance.

ComtTwnOy AcUon Progrvn Amendmeri fi
Beftnar^Memmadt CoviQn. Itk.
RFP-201S4>PHS-12-COMiyl&Ol Page \ ore



New Hmpshire Department of Health and Human Services
ContfnodltKfSapptomentat Foods Program and SiMitor Fennaro Martet Nutrition Program

6.3 This assurance Is gh«n in consideration of btkI for the purpose of obtaining any and aD Federal
financial assistance, grants, and loans of Federal funds, relmbursabia e)9)endttures, grant, or
donation of Federal property arxf interest in property, the detail of Federal personnel, the sale ar)d
lease of, and the permission to use Federal property or interest In such property or the furnishing
of services without consideration or at a nombtal cortsideration, or at a consideration that is
reduced for the purpose of assisting the recipient, or in recognition of the public Interest to be
served by such sale, lease, or furnishing of services to the recipient, or any improvements made
with Federal financial assistance extended to the Program applicant by USDA. This Includes any
Federal agreement, arrangement, or other contract that has as one of its purposes the provision of
cash assistaiKe for the purchase of food, and cash as8istar>ce for purchase or rental of food
service equipment or any other financial assistance extervfed in reliance on the representattons
and agreements made in this assurance.

Convnunfty Acdon Program Amertfmert St
Befcnap-Memrnaok Coundes, inc.
RFP-201S-OPHS-12-COMU(>01 Psot2or4



Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supptemontal Foods Pnqm and Sonlof Farniere Maitet Nutrftlon Program

This amendmert shaD be effective upon the date of Govemdr and Executiye Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Cate Lisa Morris

Director

Community Action Program
Beflcnap-Merrimack CmiATIte, Inc.

3/13/2018

Date

AcknotMedgement of Contractor's sigrrature:

Agri
Executive Director

State ot New Hampshire, County of Merrimaek on 3/13/2018 iMfore ttte undersionetl offieef.
pe'sonallyiappeared.the person Identlfied dlroctly.above. or satisfactorily proven lo be the person whose name is

^  slgrted above, and.'acknowtedged that s/ha.'executed this document in Ihe capacity indicated above.

Slgn£ture;or Ndt£^ PutMi^r Jus^ Peace

KATVYLBOarMDNeMyhMi^lttava^WB -•■Wniiii iM nniii i>iiiiiM;;»U'

Name end Tttle.of Notary:orJustice-ofthe Peace-

My Commission Expires:

CofTVTUrtiy Acdon Proprvn Anwidnwnl f1
Bsflwap Merrtinacfc CourtiiM. irK.
RFP-201SOPHS-12-COIIMOOt P«0a3or4



New Hampshire Oepartnienttof Health and Human-Services
Convnotftty Supptomental Foods Progrem snd SlDRlor Femters Markat Nutrition Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

4/.2>
Date

\i
Name

Title;

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was app
of N«¥. Hampshire at the Meeting,on:

,0V

by and Executive Council of the State
. (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE.SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Tftle:

Conrnurtly Action Program
Bdfcnap Merrlmacfc CourtUes. Inc.
RFP>2016-OPH$.12-COUMQO1

A/nertdmeni fi

Page 4 0(4



'/V
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

»lUUN DAtVK,COHCOftD.NH 0U014Sfi3

i40MSHM5tiL4su PublicHealihSovices
Jdin,KMrjm fu tOi-TJlMT TBDAmw l-We-»J$.2H4
CwBbriMrr

Usi Morrb

Dlmt«r

May 22. 2017

His ExceOency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl

State House

Concord, New HOTpshtre 03301

REQUESTED ACTtON

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Servioes to
enter into an agreement with Community Action Program of Belknap and Merrimack Counties. Inc.
(VervJor #177203-6003) to provide Commodity Supplemental Food Program and Senior Farmers'
Market Nutrition Program services statewide in an amount not to exceed $1,680,610 effective July 1.
2017 or upon Governor and Executive Coundl approval, whiche^r is later through September 30,
2021. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this reque^ are anticipated to be avaSable in State Fiscal Year 2016. 2019,
2020, 2021 and 2022 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budgets. wHh the authority to adjuM encumbfar)ces between state ftscal years, If needed and justified
without further approval from the Governor arid Executive Coundl.

See Attached Fiscal Details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide Commodity Supplemental Foods Prograrh and Senior
Farmers' Market Nutrition Program services statewide to eligible dierits. These programs'work to
improve the health of low-income elderly persons at least 60 years of age by suppiementirrg their diets,
with nutritious foods year round and fresh fruits and vegetables In the summer.

The Food and Nutrition Service, an agency of the U.S. Department of ̂ riculture (USDA)
administers the Commodity Supplemental Food Pr^ram. The USDA purchases food and makes it
available to the State along with funds for administrative costs. The Community Action Program of
Belknap and Merrimack Counties will be responsible for doing outreach and identifying potentiai senior
partidpants, screenir>g for eligitxnty. managirrg food inventory and maintainir>g required paperv^oik
according to USDA requirements. In addition, they will be resportsible for ordering, storing and
reporting Inventory of the USDA Commodity Supplemental Food Program foods. In addition, the
Contractor wilt provide referrals to other welfare, nutrition, and health care programs such as the
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and ChSdren (WIC). the Supplemental
Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP). Medlcald, 8r)d Medicare.

The Senior Farmers' Market Nutrition Program awards grants to provide low-income serwrs
with fresh fruits and vegetables purchased from NH farmers. The Community Action Program of



His Excellency. Goyemor Christopher T. Sununu
81^ the Honorable Council ^
Page2of2

Belknap znd Menimack Courttiro will use prepackaged bulk fresh fruits artd vegetables that are
purchased directly from authorized NH farmers and distributed directly to etigibte cfients. in addition,
they will be required to authorize, monitor, and reimburse the NH eligible farmers.

On February 3, 2017 the Department published a Request for Proposals to solicit proposals
from qualified applicants. The Request for Proposals was available on the Oepartment's website from
February 3,1017 through March 23,1017. One (1) proposal was received.

f

A team of IrKtivkJuals with program specific knowledge reviewed the proposals. The Community
Action Program of Belknap and Merrimack Counties was selected. The bid summary is attached.

Thb contract contains language which allows the Department to extend contracted services for
up to four additional years, contingent upon satisfactory performance, continued funding and Governor
and Executive Cound) approval.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided after
June 30, 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the state
legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 and SFY 2020-2021 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Counol not approve this request, low-Income elderly
persons may not have access to nutritious foods or fresh fruits and vegetables to supplement their
diets.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Agricultuie

In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Respectfully submitt^.

Approved by:

Lisa Morris

Direbtor

iffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Depe/tment of Heeith end Human Senhcea' Mission is to Join communities and famSies
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health end ind^tendence.



FISCAL DETAILS

05-9S«a-90201 (^2600000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: DIVISION OF PU8UC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION
HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES. WIC SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION PROGRAM

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE
AMOUNT

2018 102-500734 Contracts for Prooram Svc 90006007 315.000.00

2018 102-500734 Contracts for Prooram Svc 90006024 1.400.00

2018 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 0.00

Subtotal 318,400.00

STATE

FISCAL
YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE
AMOUNT

2019 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006007 315.000.00

2019 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006024 8.400.00

2019 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 77.065.00

Sub total 400,465.00

STATE
FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE
AMOUNT

2020 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006007 315,000.00

2020 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006024 8.400.00

2020 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 77.065.00

Subtotal 400.465.00

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE
AMOUNT

2021 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006007 315.000.00
2021 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006024 8.400.00

2021 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 77.065.00
Subtotal 400,465,00

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TfTUE
ACTIVITY
CODE

AMOUNT

2022 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006007 78.750.00
2022 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006024 7.000.00
2022 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 77.065.00

Sub total 152,815.00

TOTAL: $1.680,6ia00



New Hampehire Department of Health and Human Services

OfTice of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

ConmoAy SupptwunUl Food* Proynn (ftd
S««ttor Psmwr* Nutrftlon P<eyin RFP-2018-0PHS-12-COU MO

•RFPNama RPP Number Reviewer Names

Litsa Sirots, AOmtnlUrator II,

' • Community S Hlth Seiv (TECH)

Bidder Name
Pase/Fetl

Mextmum

Points

Ackiai
Points

loHlcs Webb. Nulntlon bortsuh
Communty.a Hlth Sonr (TECH)

CAP BM CounUea, Inc. 200 ISO

Ts^TrSiard. Program Spedlsl IV.
Communty A HIlt> Sery (Tech)

Communty S Htth S«rv (tech)

dss^^nonS^nnsTcsir
5.

Community S Hiih Serv (Cost)



FOftM NUMBBR M7 (miln MAS)
CoBBBodily Suppteaattai Fooda hognm tad S«ater Furaat Mtrtta Ntttridon Pwgiia (RP?,»1l«0PHS'ia-00»O<0)

fcifitiSS T>iii njenBtBi nri >11 af it» ■Hn'hiiiwiii Adl haen»Ti» tipni* tn
Eucoihic CooacQ ftrippvovtl. Aoy biferafdoo dot bprivtfs. ooafldoitiiJ or pi^riacfy and
be cktfty Mmriftori id tta >|*nq> tad >|fead te tn «ftriw| pf^ ri|nfm the ftontnrt-

AGRESMBNT
The Sttte of Now Ktstjshire md Ihc Coninetar hociiy mutusUy igroo u follows:

OSNBAAL PftOV1$tON8
t  IDKWTIPICAHOW.

1.1 Swa A(iaB)r Niaia
Dcptrtmni of ffaihh tod Humao Servloes

IJ StdB Agency Addrcn
129 Plaatnt Stnid
Cowof^NH 0330I.3IJ7

I.} CoetndorNime ,
Cormmaiqr Action Ptogim nrfVnip Mffrinwt Cooadta. Inc.

\4 Ootfotcier Address
2 tadus&fiU Pvfc Drtvn, Ceoeerd. NH 0)302

M CoTPicua Pboae
Hinbcr

603-223*3293

1.6 AecoBBt Nooibci

1.9 CocttractiatOfBoo for State Aicaey
Jootthn V.Osllo, Esq.

1.7 Cofflplclfon Dale
SqNeiBba30,3021

1.10 Sttta AfBaey
603-271*9246

1J Price Lifldtadon

S1.6I0^I0

Namber

I.II ContactorSlfna&ffo

1.13 ekrfarnml St

1.12 Name and Thle efCcetndor Sispaaiy

Rjifh littlfflrld. Executive Director
ate o3tf«wHaan»hfa«Oouaqf of

(k 5/25/3017 •before the uadadctBdofBeer.pcnDaaUy^ipBaredOw person idemifledb block 1.12. or utisfoctoilh
pravcn to be foe pcnoa sfooae oaroe is slioed la hioci 1. n. and adaowledsed that s/be omt^ foil docuMBt la easKtt*
iadlcttedinhteck.i:i2'
1.(3.1 SiiiiaaaeofNdtary.Pubiieor'JiadoeoflhePeioe

fscaii
.I3J NaaeadTMe orTustke of the Poice

KAXBT k OOtoUID May Mi^ Ha
W.OaMa^naCMirtlMl

1.14

tat/r
l.llr AfpDvil^theNil;OcpajtnnefAfoBl8iitratton;DlvisioBofPeioaad UfapptkabS)

Dticcttr.Oe

1.1) Nam sad Thle of State A(eneySl9ii5^

117 Approval ̂  the Aaomey Ooeril (Fora..8ufaatnwe and EuouUm) (\f^kdl§)
Br ethuc* 0 aiis. AfiisA 4/^

Executive CaCoundJ

On:

Ml Approval by the Ooveisr aod

By:

(^ppplieM^

Ok

Page I of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONT1UCTOR/SERVICCS TO

BE PERFORMED. The Stile ofNewHtmpshirc, acting,
through the agency identified in biock. 1.1 ("Slate'O. engages
comnctor identified in block t .3 (XontnctdO to perform,
and the Comnctor shall perform, the work or sale ofgoods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHlBrr A which is Incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE Date/completion OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision ofthis Agreement to the
contrary, and subject lo the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Stale of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligatioRS of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agieetnem.as indicated in
bbck Lit, unless no su^ approval is required, in which case
the Agreemeni shall become effective on (he date the
Agreement is signed by the Sute Agency as shown in block '
1.14 ("Effective Dale^.
3J IftheContrector commences the Services prior to the
E/recttvc Dale, all Services pertbrmed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date.shall.bl: performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, arul in the event that this Agreentenl does not
become effective; the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, bKludingwiihoutlimilation, any obligation to pay
the Comnctor (or any oosu irKurredior Services performed.
Coianctor.must:corT^ete:al].ScTvices by the Completion Date
spedAcd in block.1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF. ACRCCMENT.

Notwithstanding any. provision of this'Agreemeni to the
contniy, all oNignons of the;State hocunder, including,
without limitation; the continuance of payments hereunda, arc
contingent upon the availability and cxmtinued appropriation
of (unds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereundo' in excess of such available appropriated
(urMb. In the evem of a reduction or temiination of

appropriated funds, the Stale shall have the right to withhold
paymem until such hmds become available. If ever, and shall
have the right to termintte this Agreerrtent immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Slate
shall not be required lo transfer hinds from any otho' account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT. ,

S. I The contrici price, method of payment, and terms of
paymert are Identified and more paniculirty deseribed in
E)WIBIT B whkh Is incorporate herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
Dqxnses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor In the
pekormance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Comnctor for the Services. The Slate
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

5 J The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreemeit
those liquid^ amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7<c or any other provision of law.
S.4 Notwithstandingany provision in this Agreement to the
eomrary, and notwiihst^ing unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authoriad, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

1.8.

6. COM PLUNGE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY,

6.1 In connection with the performance ofthe Services, the
Contnctor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and ordas of federal, state, county or munkipal authorities
which impose any obligation or upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opporusiity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilia auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that pereons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive infonnation fi^, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
anployment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex.
handicap, rexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afTirmatlye aoion 10 prevent such discrimination.
6 J If this Agreement is funded In any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall con^y with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employmcni Opportunity"), as supplemoned by the
regulations of tire United States Depamneni of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Stale of New Hampshire or the United States Issue to
Imptemem these regulations. The Contractor fbrther agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any ofthe
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with ail rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditkms of (his Agreement.

7. PERSONNEU

7.1 The Contracuir shall at iu own expense provide all
pasonnel necessary to perform the Smites. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engagied in the Servioes'shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so imderall applicable
laws.

72 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
• this Agreemeni, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in biock 1.7. the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any suboontractor or other person, ftm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perWn the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or ofltdal, who is materially Involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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AfrecmenL This provision ih«]] survive tennination or this
AgretmcftL

TJ The Contracting Oflker speciHed in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, tftal) be the Sute's representative. In the event
of any dispmc concerning the mterpcetitlon of this Agreemem,
the Comracting OfDccr's dedsioa shail be final for the State.

t. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

1.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Controcior shall oomtltute m event of default here under
(■^vem of Default*):
t.l.l failure to perform the Services satisfsoorily or on
schedjie;
8.1.2 failure to subcnii any report required hereunder, and/or
1.1 J failure to perform any other covenant, term or oondition
of this Agreemem.
8.2 Upon the octunrnce of any Event of Oefiutit, the State
may tike any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8  i give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Evcm
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
abscrwe of a greater or lesser spedncstion of time, thirty (20)
dqri Gom the dble of the notice; and if the Event ofDefkult is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days ifier giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8J.2 give the Contractor a written notke specifying the Event
of OeCuih and suspending all payments to be made under, this
Agreemem and ordering thai the portion of the contraa price
whkh would otherwise accrue to the Contiactor during the
period Adm the date of such notkc until such time as the State
determines that the Comractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8JJ set off against any other obligations the Sute may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State sufTers by reson of any
Event of Oefaufi; and/or
1X4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
icmedies ai law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALrTY/
PRESERVATION.
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data* shall mean all
mformaiim and things developed or obtained during the
performance oC or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreemem, Including but not limited to. all studies, reports,
fUes, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound rtcordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notea, leners, mermrenda, ptpen, and documents; .
all whether finished or uafinish^.
9J All data and any property wdiich has been received from
the State or purchased with fimds provided for that purpose
under thb Agrtemeni, shail be the proper^ of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon dernand or upon
terminationofthis Agreement for any reason.
9 J Ccnfidexiiiality of data shaQ be governed by N.H. RS A
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure ofdau
requires prior wrincfl approval of the Stale.

Page

10. termination. In the event of.an early lemirtationor
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
OfTtcer, not later than fifteen < 15) days after the date of
termination, a report (Terminalton Report*) dcscrit^ in
detail all Servica performed, and the cootract price earned, to
and indudlng the date of terminatiotL The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termuvakio
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBfT A.'

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor b in all
respects an independent oontiactor, and b neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, ereployeei, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Sate or receive any beneftts, workers' compertsstlon
Of other emoluments provided by the State to hs employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the Sute. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNinCATlON. The Contraaor shall defenl
Menmify and hold hannless the State, its ofTiecrs and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by (he
State, its ofGcera and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penelUes asserted against the Sute, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on eoctwAi of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions ofihe
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
comained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the Sute, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the Sute. This covenant In paragraph 13 shall
survive the termmation of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcorUrector or
assignee to obtain and mainum in for^ the following
insurance:
14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of b^ily Injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than SI .OOO.OOOper occurrence end S2.000.000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount rxM
lessthu 80% of the whole rcplecemeni value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and cndonemotts approved for use In the
Suit of New Hampshira by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and Issued by Insurers licensed in the Sate ofNew
Hampshire.
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U J The Contractor shall furnish to the Contractrng Ofneer
Idendfied in block 1,9. or his or ha successor, a catlGcate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required unda this Agreement
Contrador shall also fonish to the Contracting Officer
identified in Mock 1.9, or his or ha successor. cotificate(s) of
imurance for all renewal(s) of msunnoe required unda this
Apeoneht no laia than thirty (}0) days prior to the expiration
dee of each of the insurance policies. The ceitificate(i) of
ittsnrKc and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
inoorporated her^ by refoence. £achcenificate(s)of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide (he Contracting Officer tdemified in Mock 1.9, or his
or ha successor, cw less than thirty (30) days prior written
iMtice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

t S. I By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
cotifies and warraius that the Contractor b in compliance with
or exempt from, the requrrements of N.H. RSA chapta 381 -A
ri^orkfri' Comptntotion"}.
13.2 To the cxtertt the Contractor b subject to the
requircmenu of N.H. RSA chapta 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, irsd require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Worfcas' Compensation in
.connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to thb AgreemenL Coatnctor shall
fumtsb the Contracting Offica identifrcd in block 1.9, or hb
or ha successor, proof of Woriceri' Compensation in the
rmnna descn'b^ hi Nil. RSA chapta 28i-A andany
applidblc renew«l(s) thereof which shall be anached and are
incorporated herein by refoence. The State shall not be
respoisible for payment of any Workers* Compensation
premiums or (br.any otha claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor.or employee of Contractor, which might
arise unda appftcabie Stale of Kew<Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws.in connection with (he perfonnancc of the
Services unda this AgreemenL

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Stale to
enforce any provisions hereof afta-any-Evcntof Default shall
be deemed a waiva of its rights with regard to.that'Everu of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Defkuli.' No express
fUIure to etforoe any Eveix of Defkutl shalfbe deerned a
waiva of (be right of (he State to enforce cadi and all of the
provisions hereof upoo any (urthaor otha Event of Default
on (he part ofthe Contractor.

17. NOTICE, ̂ y notice by a party hereto to the otha party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivoed or given at the
lime of mailing by ocrtlfted mall, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post OfTioe addressed to the pertia at the addresses
given In blocks 1.2 and 1.4, hereirL

18. AMENDMENT. Thb Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by in instrument is writing signed
by the panics hereto and onfy afla approval of such*
imendmeri. waiva or dischvge by the Oovcmor and
Executive Council of (he State ofNew Hampshire unless no

such approval b required unda the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

1*. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

Thb Agreement shall be construed In accordance with the
laws of the State ofNew Hampshire, and Is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and (heir respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in thb Agreement
Is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intenL and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parlies hereto do not intoid to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confa cny such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
arc for reference purposes only, and (he words oomalncd
(hoein shall in no way be hdd to explaln,-modify, amplify or
lid in the Interpreiaiion, construaion or meaning of the
provbions ofdus Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
•forth in the anached EXHIBIT Care incorporated herein by
referenoe.

23. SEVERaBILTTV. In the event any of the provisions of
thb Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiaton to
be contrary to any stau or federal law, the remaining
provisions ofihis Agrcemera will remain in full force and
effect

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement which may
be executed in a mimba of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constituta the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and undersundings relating hereto.

Page 4 ofd
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New HsmpshlrsDepaitnwit of Health ind Kumen Senrlcet

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. PROVISIONS APPUCABLE TO ALL SERVICES

1.1 The Contractor agrees that to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire.General Couti or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the ̂ rvices desoibed herein, the State Agency has the right to modity Service
priorities and expenditure reguiremerTts under this Agreement so as to achi^
compliance therewith.

1.2 The Contractor shaO pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that
are appricable to the funding of the.Services, operations prevention, acquisition,
or rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintainad by the Contractor to
document actual funds received or denials of funding from su<^ pubOc sources of
funds.

1.3 The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language asslstartce
service they will provide to persons wfth limited English proTidency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.4 Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
Shan continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shaO not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these senrioes has been received from the state legislature and
fundsencumberedfOrtheSt^eFlscal Year20l8-2019and2020-2021 blennla.

2. STATEMENT OF WORK

2.1 . The Contractor shall provide overall administration of the programs.

22 The Contractor shaD provide statewide public health nutrition services through
the administration of the Commodity Supplemental Food Program (CSFP) and
the Senior Farmers' Maricet Nutrition Program (SFMNP), with a targeted focus on
counties wHh a greater at-risk elderly population, while meeting at least 95% of
the assigned caseload..

2.3 The Contractor shall determine program eligibiiity of elderty applicants for the
CSFP and SFMNP according to the annual USQA CSFP and SFMNP Income
Guidelines, at or below 130% federal poverty level

2.4 The Contracta shaO maintain a minimum of three (3) years of participant
certification master files at a central location that Is accessible for audit and
review.

2.5 The Contractor shall wort with the state agency to produce required program
resources to administer the CSFP and SFMNP according to federal regulations,
which shall indude; participant rights and rules Information, training, e^cationai
materiab, and on-sfte management evaluations.

2.6 The Contractor shaO provide culturally and linguistically appropriate services for
both (he C^SFP end SFMNP.

NHOHKS
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N«w Kvnpthfav Depsrtment of Hotttf) and Human Sorvleaa

Exhibit A

2.7 The Contractor shall be required to comply with all USOA/FNS regulations,
poQcies and instructions and state policies and procedures for the CSFP and
SPMNP. The USOA/FNS regulations for CSFP can be found at
http:/Awww.fhs.usda.gov/c8fp/regutations The SFMNP regulations can be found
at http:/AMWw.fns.usda.gov/sites/defaun/filesNvic/SFMNPRegulations

2.S The Contractor shall make adjustments to the provision of services as rtecessary
to ensure compliance with changes in the federal regulations governing the
CSFP end SFMNP that may occur during the period of the contract.

2.9 The Contractor shall agree to be monitored by the NH OMMS and/or any
USDA/FNS entity, including the Office of Inspector General (OIG) auiftors.

2.10 The Contractor shall implement procedures in cooperation wHh the Department
to detect and prevent dual partictpatfon wftNn the CSFP and SFMNP.

2.11 The Contractor shall maintain an adequate accounting and record keeping
system to ensure e distinct audit trail which shall Indude but not limited to:

2.11.1 Accou nting ledgers;

2.11.2 Copies of all subcontracts;

2.11.3 Payments;
2.11.4 Participation rates; and

2.11.5 Invoices and correspondence.

2.12 The Contractor will provide financial and program data to the Department on a
monthly basis, as well as upon request.

2.13 The Contractor shaQ ensure that partictpation meets but does not exceed the
casefoad assigned by the Department for CSFP and SFMNP without prior
approval.

2.14 The Corrtractor shafl perform required yearly CSFP and SFMNP race and
ethnicity reporting (FNS-191) to the Department and FNS.

2.15 The Contractor shall adhere to USDA Office of Civil Rights policies, inctuding
insertion of the non-discrimination statement on all outreach and program
materlais. For all appropriate Contractor agency staff and volunieers. the
Contractor shall ensure that no partidpanl will be subject to discrimir^ion under
the program on the grounds of race, color, natfonai origin, age, sex or disablfity.

2.16 The Coritractqr ̂ 11 provide, participants up-to-date nutritional informatton and
materi^ regvdlng the availability of other nutrition, health and soda! service
assistance programs in their service area.

2.17 The Contractor shall inform applicants of their rights and responsitrilities at the
time of certification in the CSFP and SFMNP.

2.18 The Contractor shall Implement folr hearing procedures for persons who file
statements claiming inappropriate adverse action.

2.19 The Contractor shall meet the special needs of the homebound etderty by
utilizing proides and volunteers.

NH WHS
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New Henpshbe Department of HMhh end Humtn Servtcee

Exhibit A

2.20 The Contractor ehaD pursue claims aoainst participants or fanners, as neoessary
or required.

2.21 The Contracta shall coordinate for referrals and enrollment initiatives with other
organization such as the NH Senior Center Network and Fafth^ased Services
Warehouse and Oistribution Requirements

2.22 The Contractor shall provide warehouse facilities for receiving, storing, and
distrtbution of USOA convnoditJes for CSFP and fresh huh and vegetable
bundles for SFMNP in comp6ance with state and federal regutatiora.

2.23 ITie Contractor shall ship commodities and fresh fruK and vegetable bundles to
the certificatjOfVdistnbution sites based on packing dates, ensuring that the oldest
commodities and produce are used first.

2.24 The Contractor shaO provide adequate refrigeration for up to five (5) days for
fresh bulk produce.

2.25 The Contractor shall order end maintain appropriate leveb of Inventory, maintatn
end epproprtateV safeguard USOA fô  In their handling, storage arvj
distribution per 7 CFR 250.14(b).

2.26 The Contractor shaQ perform required monthly CSFP caseload and commodity
inventory reporting (FNS-153) to FNS.

,  The fonowlno shall apply to SFMNP only.

2.27 The Contractor shaO work with the NH Department of AgrlcuRure to recruit
authorize, end train farmers to provide bulk purchase of authorized produce for
the SFMNP.

2.28 The Contractor shall coordinate with farmers for the dellveiy of the bulk
purchased t)undles of produce to CSFP dinic sites statewide.

2.29 The Contractor shall be responsible for the production of the farmer appiication,
agreement training and supplemental educatfonal materials for senior
participants.

2.30 The Contractor shall provide annual farmer orientation and trainina for the
.  SFMNP.

2.31 The Contractor shaO appoint a coordinator responsible for the overall
implementation of SFMNP.

3. STAFFING

3.1 The Contractor shafl maintain a competent and adequate level of staffing to meet
(he scope of services end assigned caseload. If training is needed, describe
what those training rmeds are. as wed as the agency's wUlir>gness to erasure that
all staff In need of training receives it prior to commencement of service deOvery.

4. PERFORMANCE MEASURES

4.1 Percent of low-income seniors enroOed In CSFP.

4.2 Percent of bvHncome seniors receiving SFMNP during summer distribution
months.

NHOHHS
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Exhibit A

4.3 Percent of tow-income seniors receiving nutrttlon education material highOghttng
the health benefits of CSFP and SFMNP foods.

5. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

5.1 The Contractor shall provide an Annual Report no later than September 30 of
each contract year for CSFP and SFMNP.

NHOHHS

A - Scope el Servtoes Contrector
Papa 4 of 4 bate:

tof Inmate



Nmv Hampthtri Oapaftmant of Hetfth and Human Servkas

ExhiMB

Method and Conditions PrecBdont to Payment

1. This contract is funded wfth funds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic-Assistance (CFDA) #10.575
US Department of A^rlcutture, Food and NutrttSon Servlcej Commodity Suppiementai Food Program
and #10.576, US Department of Agrtcutture, Food ar)d Nuuttkm Service. Senior Farmers Market
NutrUon Program, in providing services pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services. The contractor
agrees to provide the services In ExhibH A. Scope of Services In compUanoe with funding
requtrenrterrts.

2. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on Form P37. Block
1.6, for the services provided by (he Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

3. Payment for er^cnset shaO be on a cost reimbursement basis only for actual expenditures.
Expenditures shkl be in accordance with the approved line item budgets shown In Exhibits B-1
throughB-d.

4. Payment for services Shan be made as follows:

4.1. The Contractor must submit monthly invoices for reimbursement by the 20** of each month for
services specified in Etftibit A. Scope of Services. The State shaO make payment to the
Contractor u^thin thirty (30) days of receipt of each Invoke for Contractor services provided
pursuant to this Agreement

4.2. The Invokes must

4.2.1. Clearly identify the amount requested and the services performed during that period.'

4.2.2. Include a detailed account of the work performed, and a Bit of deCverables compkted
during that prior month, as outSned in Exhibtt A. Scope of Services.

4.2.3. Separately identify any work and amount of attributabk and performed by an approved
contractor, if applicable.

4.2.4. SeparWiy Ideittfy any expenses incurred by the Contractor that wQ be considered
Non-Federal Match per the funding grant requirements.

4.2.5. Provide a monthly signed certifkatkm that the matching funds, equal to 20% of ihe
contract award amount vi^ikh may be in cash or in kind, are not derived from federal
sources.

4.3. Invokes and reports Identified In Section 4.1 and 4.2 must be submitted to:

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Diviskn of PubQc Health Services
26 Hazen Drive

Concord. NH 03301

5. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified In
ExhibH A.

6. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty (60) days after the Contract ends.
Falure to submH the Invoice, and accompanying documentation could result in nonpayment

7. No(v4thit8r>tfng anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be witoheid. in whole or in part, in (he eveid of noncompQarroe with any State or Federal
bw, rule or regulation appikabk to the services provided, or if the said services have not been
compkted In accordance with (he terms and cor>ditlofta of thia Agreemertt.

8. Notwlthst8rtdlr>g paragraph 18 of Form P-37. General Provisions, an amendment Bmited to the
ad}usttoeni of the amounts between budget One Hems and/or State Fiscal Years, related Items, and
amendments of rotated budget exhlbHs. can be made by written agreement of both parties tnd do not
required additional approval of the (Governor and Executive Cotmcll.

EiftfiXIB ConVactor InlWi
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Exhibit C

SPEaALPWOVtSlOMS

Contractofi ObfipatloAs; The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be .used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuato and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covermrrts. the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as fOliows:

1. CompQanoe with Ndarai and State l.aws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eUgiblUty
of indrvMuats such eDgfbiDty detennination shall be made In accordance with appUcabte federal and
stata laws, regulations, orders, guideHnet. poHdes and procedures.

2. Time and Manrwr of Datermination: EtigibiBty determinations shall be ntate on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such timies as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determlnabon forms required by the Department the Contractor
shaO maintain a data file on each recipient of services heretmder, which file shaO Include aB
^formation necessary to support an ̂ibllity determinatfon and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with aD forms arrd documentation
regarding eligibOlty determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Tair Heartnga: The Contractor understands that all appDcants for tervioes hereunder. as well as
indlvidualS'declared ineliglbie have a ri^ to a fob hea^ regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that ell applicants for tenrices shaD be permitted to flQ out
an application form and that each applicant or re^ppUcant shall be Informed of hfoyhcr right to a fob
hearing b) accordance with Ocpartrnent regutafioru.

5. Oratultiea or KJckbaclcs: The Contractor agrees thai It Is a breach of thb Contract to accept or
make a payment gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Wortc detailed In Exhfoit A of this
Contract The State^may terminate thb Contract end any subcontract or sub-agreement if it b
determined that paymenb. gratuities or offers of employme'nt of any kind were offered or received by
any offidab, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwtthstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or In any
other document contract or understanding, it b expressly undeiatood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no paymertts wQI be made hereunder to rebnburse the Contractor for cosb incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Corrtract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contmctor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the bfoividua) appfles for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regutations) prior to a determination that the indhridua! b eligible for such services.

7. Coodtttorb of ̂ rehase: Notwithstanding anythtog to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shaQ be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase ser^rfces
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor In excess of (he Contractors costs, at a rate

which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such seMce. or at a
rate which axceeds the rato charged by the Contractor to inefigible individuals or other thbd party
funders for such service. If at any Qme dunr>g the term of thb Contract or after receipt of the Final
&pen«£ture Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hefeur>der to reimburse Items of expense other than such cosb. or has received payment
in excess of such cosb or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible In^duab
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to;
7.1. Renegodate the rates for payment hereurtoer. In which event n^ rates shall be eitablbhed:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of cosb;

JiS,EihMC-SpadalPreviUims Contrvctor MWi.
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7.3. Demand repayment of the exceas payment by the Contrsetof in whkh event faBure to make
•uch repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eUgtoUty of indMduats tor services, the Contractor agre^ to
reimburse the Department for aO funds paid by the Depaitment to the Contractor tor services
provided to any todhridua) who is found by the Department to be tnetigtbto for such services at
arty time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

6. Htatntenance of Racoids: In addition to the eflglbfllty records spactfied above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the foiloMng records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscel Records: books, rscords, documents and other data evidencing end reflecting eO costs

arrd other expenses hcuned by the Contractor In the perfbrmance of the Contract and aO
income received or coOected by the Contractor during the Contrad Period, said records to be
maintained in ecoordence with eccoun^,procedures end practices which sufRdently and
property reflect all such costs snd exposes, and.which are acceptable to the Department, end
to Inctode. without nmitation. all ledgm, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions arto orders, vouchers, requisitions tor materials. Inventartos. valuations of
bbklrtd contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, end other records requested or required by the
Department

6.2. Stattotical Records: Statistical, enroflment. attendance or visit records tor each recent of
sanrlces during the Contract Period, which records shall include aO records of appilcalion and
eOgtolUty (Induding aO torms required to detennme eligibility for each such recipient), records
regardng the provision of services end ell invoices submittod to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

6.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as presotoed by the Departmem regulations, the
Contractor shell retain medical records on each patient/redpient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shaO submit en annual audit to the Depaitment within 80 days after the dose of the
egerwy fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management end Budget Circular A-133, 'Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
ProfB Organizations' and the previsions of Standards for Aud3 of G^mmental Organizations.
Progrems. Actlvfties and Functions, issued by (he US General Accounting Office (GAG standards) as
they pertain to financial compBance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period far retention hereunder, the

OepartmenL the Unfted States Department of HeaSh and Human Sanrlces. and any of their ,
de^fttted representatives thai) have acceti to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
(he Contract for purposes of audU. exismlnation. excerpts arrd trarrscrlpts.

9.2. Audit Liabtiities: In addition to and not in any way In (imitation of obiig^ons of (he Contract it la
understood snd agreed by the Contractor that the Cordractor shsO be held table for any state
or federal audt exceptions and tftall return to the OepartmenL aO payments made under the
Contract to which etteption has been taken or which ha^ been dlsaOowed because of such an
exception.

10. ConfldentUPty of Records: Afl Informaten, reports, end records maintained herermder or coQectad
in connection with the performance of the services and the Cordracl shall be confldentiaJ and shsD not
be discJosed by the Contractor, provided however, (hat pursuant to state taws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and diseiosure of such information, dlsdosure may be made to
pubUc offtotals requiring such Infbrmationin cortnection,with Iheir official duties end for purposes
directly cortf)ected to the administration of the servlcei and the Contract end provided further, (hat
the use or dlsdosure by any party of any Information concerning a redplent fbr any purpose not
directly connected wtth the admirOstrslton of the Oepartment or the Contractofs resporalbtuties with
respect to purchased servtoes hereunder (s prohlbltod except on witttan consent of the redpiert. hfs
attorney or guanflan.

EitkUC-SpadilPnwbfeiRS Cortrtctor InUKli
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NoMthttandIng anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and condftions contained m
the Paragraph shaQ survive the terminat'on of the Contract for any reason vvhataoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Stadstieal; The Contractor agrees to submit the fodovwing reports at the foDovdng
dmes If requested by the Department.
11.1. tnterimFinanciil Reports: Written interim finandal reports containing a detailed description of

eO costs 8r>d rwrvatlowable expertses incurred by the Contractor U) the date of the rep^ and
containing such other information as shaB be deemed satisfactory by'the Department to
iustify the rate of paymem hereunder. Such FinanctaJ Reports shaO be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.^ Final Report A final report shall be submitted within thirfy (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract The Final Report shaO be in a form satMctory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals arxl ot)jecttyes stated in the Proposal
and other Information-required by the Depertmerd.

12. Complebon of Senrteee: Oisaliowarm of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for In the Contract arvl upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract' and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If, upon review of the
Rnai Expenditure Report the Department shall sallow any expenses claimed by the Corrtractor as
costs hereunder the Department shaO retain the right at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expertses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: AO documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materiats prepared
.  durir>g or re'sutting ffom the performance of the services of the Contract shall Include the foDowtng

statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report document etc.) was financed under a Contract wtth the Sute
of Hampshire. Deparlmenl of Heaith and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other fundirtg sources as ̂ re ava&able or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright OMnarshlp; AJl.materlals (vwttten. video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shaD have prior approval from OHHS before prlrttlng, prpducticn,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright owrwrship for any and ail origlnai materials
produced, including, but not Bmited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract vrithout
prfof vwittan approval from ohhS.

15. Operation of Facilitiea: Compliance wtth Uwa and Regulatfona: In the operation of any fadlitkes
for proriding services, the Contractor shall comply with all taws, orders and regulations of l^ral.
state, county end munidpai authorities end wHh any Erection of any PubQc Officer or ofRcm
pursuant to laws which shafi Impose an order or duty the contractor with respect to' the
operation of the faculty or the provision of the services at such focfilty. If any governmental Hcertse or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said fadHty or the performance of Ihe said services,
the Contractor wm procure said Dcense or permit and wiD at ali tirr>es comply wtth the terms end
conditions of each such Dcense or permH in connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and egrees that, during the term of thb Contract the facfiities shall
comply wtth eO rules, orders, regulatlorts, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the locai fire protection agerKy. and shall be in conformance with local building and xoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Empfoyment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
O^rtunity Plan (EEOP) io the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice ̂ ograms (OCR), fi It has
receNed a single swvd of $500,000 or more. If the retiplent recedes $25,000 or more and has 50 or

EsttM C - SptcUl Prevtafem Contractor inlWa
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more employees, (t wil maintain a current EEOP on file and auPmIt an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, ceding that ita EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
v4th fevner than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the avvard, the recipient win provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying It is not rerpilred to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. IrMian Tribes, and medical end educational Institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to clsifn the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are evsaable at: http:/Awww.oip.usdOf/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. t.imltad Elfish ProflclerKy (LEP): As dartfied by Executive Order 13166. improving Access to
Servfecs for persons wflh Umtted EngRsh Proficiency, and resufOng agency guidance, natiortal origin
discrtmination includes diseriminafion on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance vMth the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Ad of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Ad of 1984. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

16. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee WhistieblowerProtocttona: The
foOcwtng shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold n defined In 43
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

COKTRACTOR EMPtOYEE WMSTUEBIOWER RKXTS AND REOUtREUENT TO INFORM EiylPlOYEES OF
WHiSTLEBLOWER RiCKTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contrad will be subjed to the whistteblower rights
and remedies bi the pilot program on Contractor employee whistteblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authortzation Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shell inform Its employees in writing. In the predominant language of the wotkfbroe,
of employee v4)lstleblcM«f rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described In secfion
3.906 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall Insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in aO
subcontracts over the simpQfied acquisttion threshold.

19. Subcorttractora: OHHS recognizes that the Contrador may choose to use subcontractors wfth
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsaxfity and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Cortfractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's abiDty to perfonn the delegated
fundion(s). This Is accomplished through a wrttteii agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responslblDties of the subcontractor and provides ̂  revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions If
the subcontractor's performance la not equate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor Is responsibfe to ensure subcontractor compOanoe

those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective sut>contractor'i ability to perform (he activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a writteit agreement With the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
rasponsUWes and how sandiona/ravocatlon vrifi be managed if the subcontradofs
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

EiMMi C - SpacW Pftwtslocit Contractor MUMi.
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19.4. Pruvkte to DHHS an annual schodule Identifying all aubcontractora, delegated ftinctiona and
reaponsbflttiea, and when the aubcontractor't perfocmance wCI be reviewed

19.5. DHHS ahaS, at its discretion, review and approve an subeontracta.

if the Contractor Identifies deficiendes or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shaO
take corrective action.

DEFmmONS

As used in (he Contract, the foOovMng terms shall have tf>e foOowing meanings:

COSTS: Shafl mean those direct and Indirect Items of expense detennined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in ecoordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal taws, regulations, orles snd orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which la

entnied Tinaneial Management Ouldeiines* and which contains the regulations governing the finandai
actMties of contractor agendas which have contracted with the State of NH to receive f^s.

PROPOSAL- If appficable. shaO mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Servicea to be provided to eOgfole
MMduala by the Contractor In accordance v4th the \ttms and eonditiona of the Contract and aetting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided imder the Contract

UNIT: For each aervice that the Contractor is to provide to efiglble Individuals tieraunder. shaO mean that
.period of.tlme.or.th8t.specifled^vity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever foderal or state taws, regutatfons, rules, orders, and poOdes, etc. are
referred to in the Contract the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
ttiey may t>e amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: ShaD mean that document prepared by tfie NH Department of Administratfve
Servfoes cbiitainihg'a oompOatldh of all rpgulatiofts promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
AdminiatrBtjve Procedures Act NH RSA Ch S4 t-A, for the purpose of Implementmg Stats of NH and
federal ragulabons promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDER^ FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided urrder this.
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds avaBabie for these services.

EjtfiM C • Spedil PnnMons Comnctar Mttos,
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REVWWWa TO QENERAI. PROMSMWa

1. Subparagraph 4 of the Geneftf Provbiom of thit contrttt. CortdWonaJ Nature of AoreemenL t»
replaced as foOovvs: ^

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
NobMlhstanding any provision of thb Agreement to the contrary, all obCgations of the State
hereunder. Including vrfthout BmHatlon. Iho continuance of payments, in VMhole or h part
unOer this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or evallabaity of funds
indudtng any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availabtfity of Aavto affected by
eny state or federal legislative or execulNe action that reduces, eOrNnates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or avaltabiilty of funding for tNi Agreement and the Scope of
»ryfces provided in Exhibft A. Scope of Servfcee. In whole or in part In no event shaO the
Slate be BaUe for any payments hereurtder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reductton. termination or modification of appropriated or avaflable hmds the
State shall have the rtght to withhold payment until such fUnds become evaibble. if ever.'lhe
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify servfces under this Agreement
immediately upon gMng the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfisf funds from any other source or account Into the
Accoimt(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provbiora, Account Number, or any other
account, In the event hmds are reduced or unavafiabte.

2. Si^ragreph 10 of the General Provblons of thb contrect. Termination. Is amended by adding the
following bnguege:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at ar*y time for eny reason, at the sob dbcretlon of
the State, 30 days after gMng the Contractor written notice that the State b exerdsing lb
option to termmate the AgreerrtenL

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Ccntiactof shaD, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, devetop and submit to the State a Transition Pten fbr services under the
Agreement, including but not Umited to. Identifying the present and ftiture needs of cflenb
fBceMng services under the Agreement and estabibhes a process to meet those needsr'' •

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptfy provide detsDed
Wormetion to support the TramWon Plan including, but not limrted to. any Wormation or
data requestad by the Sble related to the termination of the Agreement ar>d Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication end revbions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 in the event that sendees under the Agreement, including but not Cmlted to cflenb receiving
services under the Agreement are iransltloned to having services deUvered by another enlily
Including contraded providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted deHvery of services In the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall estabOsh a method of notifying ctlems and other afftected Indlviduab
about the transition. The Contractor shaB Include the proposed communications in lb
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

^  ̂ O^rtment reserves the right to renew the uxiuaul fbr up to four edditbnai yeers, subject
^ conbnued evailabillty of funds, satisfactory peNormence of services and approval b* ttw
Governor and Executive Council.

ErfifcH C-1 - Ravbloni la StandanJ ProvbJon rntvfrtw
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SmTTOATIQH REQABMKO PRiK^FREE WORKPLACE ftEQUtREWEWTS

The Conlmtfqr Identified In Section 1.3 of the Genefal Provision# agree# to comply ̂  the provtsion# of
Section# S1S1«5160 of the Drut^free Workptace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-680, Title V. SuMMe 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et ceq.), and further agree# to have the ContractDf# representative, a# Identlfled In Section#
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the feUowing Certiflcatton:

ALTERNATIVE 1 - FOR GRANTKS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US OePARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AORICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Thh eertiflcation is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151 <9160 of the Dnig-free
Woi1iplaceAc1of1988(Pub. L 100-690, Title V.SubtitieO; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31,
1989 regutitiort# were amended and pub&shed as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Regbter (pag«
21681-21691), and require certflcatkin by grantees (and.by Irtference, sutr-grantees end sub^
contractors), prior to avord, that Ihey wO maintain a drug-free wodcplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regutatton provides that a grantee (and by inference, su^rantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certffication to the Department in each federal fiscal year in tieu of certificate# for
each grant during tha federal fiscal year covered by the oertHlcation. The certificate set out betow Is a
mitoial representation of fact upon wMch reBance is placed when the agency awards the grant False
cartifiestion or vtoiatlon of the certificetion shaO be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
tenninatlon of grants, or govemm^t wide suspension or debarment Contractors using this form should
send H to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It wfi] or win continue to provide 8 drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying emptoyees that the unlawful manufacture. distrOxition.

dispensing, possession or use of a controOed substance is prohibited In the grantee's
\Mrkptoce and spetifying the actions that will be taken against employees for vtoiadon of such
prohibition;

1.2. • EstabGshirig an ongoing dnjg-free awareness program to Infonn employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's poOcy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any aveOaUe drug counseltng, rehabiitation. and employee asststarwe programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse vlofetions

occurrmg in the workplace:
1.3.' Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that as a conditon of

employment urtder the grant the employee w3l
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a viotation of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in vwtUng. within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 ffom an employae or otherwise receivlrig actual notice of such ccnvicborv '
Employers of convicted employees must pro^ notice. Including position tlbe. to every grant
officer on v4)ose grant acih^ the convicM employe was working, untoss the Federal agency

ExriM D - Ceitiacstlen rtoMtag Drug Cortnaor trONi.
VtartqtM* RsqtOvincnli
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hat deaignated a cewal poim toe the raceipt of luch notteea. Notico thaO include the
IdentllScation nuniber(t) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the IWkw^g actions, within 30 calendar days of receivino notice under
tubperagra^ 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who ts so convicted

I?!?? pemonnel action against such an employee, up to and includingtermination, consistent wtth the requirements of the Rehabintatlon Act of 1973 as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring auch employee to participate satisfactorliy in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabUttatton program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local heafth
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workpiaca through
impfementaUon of paragraphs 1.1,1.2,1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.8.

2. Thegranteemayfci4eftlntheapacepfovldedbetowthesite(s)foftheperfofmanceofworkdoneln
connection with the speclSc grant.

Place of Peftbrmance.fstreet rtdreas. dty. county, stats, zip code) (llat each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on fSe that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:
Community Action Program Bclknap-Menlnuck Counties, Inc.

S/25/2017

NaneTTjupHuBefleldT
Title: Executive Director

EtfMO-CsrttBottonrseardhBOrwg Frve Centrsdor bVS^
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CERTmCATIOM REQARD«MQ LOBBYMQ

The Contricte identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to co^ty with the provisions of
Section 319 of Putriic Law 101*121, Government wide Guldartce for New Restrtotions on UAtiying. and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and fmlheragrees.tohave the Contractor's represerrtattve, as identified In Se^ns 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the lOOowing CertMcation;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs Ondicato appBcable program covered):
*Tempor«ry Assistance to Ne^ Famaies under Title IV-A
*ChBd Support Enforcement Program under Titie IV*D
"Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
"Medlcaid Program isider Title XIX
"Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
"Child Care Oevetopment Blocfc Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the t}est of his or her knov4edge and behef. that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or vrlD be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person fbr influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Mmber of Congress in
connecticn with the awarding of any Federal contract continuation, renewal, amendment or
modificaticn of any Federal contract, grant loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or subcontractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wSI be paid to any person for
InfhjerKing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an emptoyee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or wth
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, bi acccrdancewllh its instructiorts. attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E*l.)

3. The undersigned shaO require that the language of this certification be included in the avmrd
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts. sut>-grants, end contracts under grants,
bans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients sfiafi certify and dlsclosa accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification Is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction^bnposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who bits to f3e the requbed
certification shall be subject to a civB penalty of not less than 910,000 and not more than 9100,000 for
each such fsHure.

Contractor Name:
Community Action Program Bdknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

S/2S/2017

Date Little fieldName:

TItte Executive Direct

EiNM C - Cansication ftagarrtng leSbytng
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CEWTIRCATIOli REQARPWQ PEBARMBIT. 8U8PEIi8IOM

AMD OTHBI RESPCMSIBfL/nr MATTERS

Tho Contractor lOentrfied in Soction 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to eompty vMlh the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12S49 and 4$ CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment
Suspension, and Other Respons&Oty Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representattve. as Identified In Sectiora 1.11 and t .12 of dw General Provisions execute the folovring,
Ceitficadon:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By Signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The Inabiity of a person to provide the certification required below win not necessarily resu.R In denial
of partidpatiofl In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant thiO submit an
exptanaticn of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanallon win be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determlrurton whether to enter Into this transaction. However, faflure of the prospective p^ary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person ftom parbdpation in
ttss trarttaction.

3. The certification in this dauseis a material representation of fact upon v^lchrefiarKo was placed
vi4>en DHHS determined to enter Into thb transaction, if It b later determined that the prospective
primary participant Imowlngly rertdered an eroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
availat^ to the Federal Government DHHS may tarmirrate this bansaction for cause or defauB.

4. The prospective primary participant shafl provide Immediate vwltten rwtice to the DHHS ̂ef>cy to
whom this proposat (contracQ b submitted if at any time the prospective prirnary participant teams
that Its certification was erroneous vrfien submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The lenns 'covered trar\saction,' 'debarred.' *susper>ded.' 'inengible,' 'lower tier covered
transaction,' 'partidpanl.' 'person,' 'primary covered transaction.* 'principal,' 'proposal' and
Volunlariiy excluded,' as used In thb clause, have the meanings set oiiiln the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shaO not knovringly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person>M)o b debar^, suspended, declared in^lUe. or voluntarily excluded
from participation In thb covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary partidpartt further agrees by submitting this proposal that it w8l Include the
dause tided 'Certification Regarding Oebtfment Suspension, IneGgibaity and Voluntary Exclusion >
Low«r Tier Covered Transactions.* provld^ by DHHS. without modification, in aQ lower tier covered
transactions and in an soficitations fw tower tier covered transactions.

6. A partidpanl in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that H b not debar^ suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification b erroneous. A participant may
dedde the method and frequency by v4i.ich it determines the eDgibSity of its prir\dpab. Each
participant may. but b not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

0. Nothing contained in the foregoing shad be construed to require estabflshment of a system of records
in order to render in good faih the certification required by thb clause. The knowledge and

EiSibS F - CwWcrtqn Regarding Otbemiev, Suspension ■ Corrector
And Other RstpemaCiy Msttere
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information of a partidpant f« not roouired to exceod thai wmich is normafiy possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered eansactlon knowbgty enters into a jower tier covered transaction vUth a person vmo is
suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or vofuntarity excluded from participation in thb transaction, in
addition to other remedies avaOabte to the Federal government, OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause a defautL

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certities to the best of its knowledge and beDef, that fl and its
prindpats: '
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared IneBgible. or

voluntarily exduded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convided of or had

a dvU judgment rendered against them for commbiion of fi^aud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contrad under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, thefl, forgery, bribery, falsification or destructiondf
records, making fobe statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not preseidly indicted for otherwise criminally or civtDy chaged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) wtih commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (0(b)
of thb certiflcatien; and

11.4. have not wtthin a three-year period preceding thb appltcailorVproposal had orte or more pubtic
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or defauft.

12. Where the prospective primary partidpant b unable to certify to any of the statemenb in thb
certification, such prospective partidpant shad attach an explanation to thb proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVEREO TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submHRing thb lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier partidpant as

d^ed in 45 CFR Pert 76. certifies fo the best of lb knowledge and belief that it and ib principato;
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed tor debarment declared inefiglbte, or

voluntarily excluded from partlci^on in thb trartsadlon by any federal.department or agency.
13.2. vmere the prospective lower tier participant b unabto to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an expbnation to thb proposal (cordract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting thb proposal (contract) that it wiO
include thb dause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment Suspension. Ir^igibBrty. and
Voluntary Exckbion • Lovmr Tier Covered Transactions.' without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in ail soDdtatiorb for tower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Community Action Program BeUcnap-Mernmack Counties. Inc.

5/2V2017

Title

Date Name:^ Ril^ Liulef
Executive Director

r - CctBteiBon ftftgnang Debamtenl. Smpfxten CviVKtor Mtels
And OOwr RMpOASlbffiy UaOers
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REQUtftgMENTa PgPTAItniiQ

PEPHWi HQNgl8PfflMrWAT>OT, EQU^
WHWTLEBLOWER PBOTgCTlQMfl

The Contra^ identined in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractoi's
representative as identifled in Seebofts 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to eiwaite the fbdowfixt
certification:

Contractor vrfll comply, and edJI require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any aoDlicabte
federal nondlscrlmlrutlon requirements, inhich may Include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. Sectkm 3789d) which prohibits
HKlpients of federal ftjrxllng under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or bi
Ihe deGvery of services or t>eneftts, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opp^nity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
raference, the cWl rights obfigatlons of the Safe Streets Act. .Recipients of fMerai fundng under this
stt^ are prohibtted from dbcriminatrng. ehhcr In employment practicas or In the deUvery of services or
benefits, on the ba^ of race, coler. rcOglon. national origin, and sex The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Ptah requirements:

"  Civfl Rights Act 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits redpierrts of federal financial
assistance from dlscriminattng on the basis of race, color, or natiortai origin in any program or activity);
- the Rehat^tttion Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohbits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from dlscrtminatiriQ on the basis of disabiiity, In regard to employment and the delivery of
sendees or benefits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibfu
discrimination end ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities In employment. State and local
0ovemment services, pubOc accommodabons. commercial fadlibes. and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86). which prohbHs
discrimination on the basis of sex m fe^aliy assisted education programs;
•theAge DIscrimlnatton Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohlbiti discrimhaticn on the
basb of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assbtance. it does not Include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Oepartmenl of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimlnation; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
end Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for fatth-besed and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fixndamental principles and poGcy^naking .
criteria for partnerships with faltti-trased and neighborhood orgartizaticns:

I

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatntent for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whbtleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 end The National Defense Authortzatlon
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (P^b. L. 112-239. enacted January Z 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whbl»ebim««r Protections, which protecu employees against
reprisal for certain wtibtle blowing activities In correction with Meral grarrts end eorttrscts.

The certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon ̂ Ich reliqnce b placed when the
agency awards the grarrt. False certification or violation of the certification shaO be^grounds for
Suspension of payments, suspension or termlr^ation of grants, or govemmerq wide suspension or
debarment.

ExtiMlG
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State admintttrative agerKy makea a finding of
discrtminatton after a due process heartrig on the grounds of race, color, religion, nattonal origin, or sex
against a redpient of funds, the redprerrt forward a copy of the finrfo^g to the Office for Ctvn Rights, to
the applicatrie contracting agency or division within the Department of HeaSh and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Cornractor't
representxtiye as identified InSectfortt 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provlsiorrs. to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:
Community Action Program BcIknap-McrriroackCountiea. inc.

S/25/2017

Date Name: _
Title: Executive Director'
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CERTTFICATIQH REQARDIHQ EMVmOWMEMTAL TOBACCO SMOKg

PuMc Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Totwcco Smoke, also known as ihe Pro-ChiWren Act of 19W
(Ad), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any indoor facflJty owned or leased or
contraded for by an entity and used routinely or regularty fer the provision of health, day care education
Of Obrary services to children under the age of i S, if the services are funded by Federal programs either'
directly or through Stde or local governments, by Federal gram, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to cWldren'i services provided in private resldenees. fadUtles funded solely by
Medlcaie or Medkaid funds, and porSons of todlities used tor Inpetlent drug or elcohot treatment. FeSure
to comply ofth the provisions of the law may result In the imposition of e dvil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/Of the Imposition of en administrative compUance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
rep^errtatlve as Identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provlsloni. to execute the foOowtng
cereHcation;

1. By signing and submHling this contract the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with aO applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:
Community Action Progrtm Belknip-Merrimsck Counties, Inc.

5/25/2017

Date

Executive Director

Name UtiJefieKl
Title

ErffU H - Csrttotfon Rsoafdlna
EnWorwxntsI Tobseeo SmoSs 'r" y
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HEALTH IM8URAMCE.PORTABUTY ACT

BUSIWES8 ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the GeneraJ Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
compf/with the Heaflh Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Pul)tic Law 104>191 and
whh the Standards for Privacy and Security of IndividuaOy Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 aruj 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered

shaB mean the State of New Hampshire. Departntent of Health and Human Services.

(1) Deflnltlons.

a 'Breach* shaB have the same meaning as the term "Breach* in section 164.402 of Tide 45.'
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regutatkxis.

c. 'Covepsd Entrtv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Desionated Record Set' ShaB have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set*
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aooreoation' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
SectiOfi "164:501.

f. "Heatth Care Qberattons" shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
ln45CFRSectk}m164.501.

g. 'HfTECH Act' means;the Heatth Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TrtteXIII, Subtitte'D. Part 1 A 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009. . . ,

h. "HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individualfy Identifiable Health
tnftfmatiqn, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 bthI 164 end amendments thereto.

I. 'fndivlduar shaO have the same meaning as the term 'indhnduaT In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shaD Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordartce with 45
CFR Section164.501(g).

j. 'Prfvacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Indivlduaily Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

\

k. 'Protected Health Infofmation" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information' In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

J0014 t
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I. •Reoutred bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law* In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. •Secretary' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
hia/her dMignee.

n. 'SecurHv Rule* shad mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Heatth tnformation at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments tt>ereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means proteclBd heatm tnfofmiitinn rhat i« rvn
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indedpherat^e to unauthorized irxjividuals arvf is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Staitdards
Institute.

p. Other DeflnHions - AH terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanir>g
estabSshed under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160; 162 arxt 164, asameruled from time to time, and the
HITECH

Ad.

(2) Business Associate Use and Dlscloaure of Protected Hoatth Informatien.

a. Business Associate shaO not use. disdose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement Further, Business Associate, Including but not Cmited to aO
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy arid Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and adrrtinistrBtlon of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.
\

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreerrtent to dtsciose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI wll) be 1^ conAdentiaOy ar)d ?
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; ar^ (11) an agreerrrent from such thirt party to notify Business
Assodatfl, in acpordaice with the'HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent H has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, dtsciose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that It Is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has en opportunity to obfect to the disCtosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disdosure, the Business

4^VW4 I EiTiMtl CcrtradsrInliaJt.
HeaRh rrwnnG* PoitrtAy Ad
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Associate ahan refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

6. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Assodate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additicral restrfctions over and at>ove those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shaO be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disctose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Actfvtttes of Business Aseoclate.

a. The Business Associate shaD notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Imrmtfiatefy
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for t}y the Agreement Includtng breaches of unsecured -
protected health Infbrrnation and/or any security Incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shaQ Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shaQ include, but not be
limited to:

0 The^nature and extent of the protected health Information involved, including the
typ8$:of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 T^iunauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually Bcquired or viewed
0 Theiextent to which the risk to the protected health Infonnation has been

mitigated.

The Business Assodate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment In vwlting to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Assodate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Assodate shaD make available aQ of its inlemal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Assodate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require aD of its business assodatss that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 0). TTie Covered Entity
shaO be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who wfll be receiving PHI

EiWMI ContfWwWaUi
HMShlnMnnoi PortaMXy Aa
flurtwM AnoctO AgmmiiV
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pursuant to this AgraemefU, with rights of enfofcament and Indemnification from such
buslnesa assodates who shaB be governed by standard Paragraph S13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement ̂  the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five <5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shafl make availebte during normai business hours at Its offices ail
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Assoctate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Wrthln ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business As^iate shal) provide access to PHI in a Donated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. '

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record
Set the Business Associate shaQ make such PHI avaBable to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obUgattons under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

I. Business Associate shaD document such disdosures of PHI end information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Indlvidu^ for an accounting of dlsdosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obOgations
to provide an accounting of (fisdosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

k. In the eveni any Individual requeste access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly f^ the Business Associate, the Business Assodate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibdily of responding to forwarded requests. However, If forwaiding.the
tndividuars request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Assodate to yloiate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Assodate
shall Instead respond to ihe Individuars request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicat)le.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, ait PHI
received from, or created or received by ihe Business As^iate In connection with the
Agreem^. and shaD not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction b not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI ties been olherwbe agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Assodate shaD continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limii further uses end disdosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the retum or destruction infeasibla. for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. tf Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires tftat the
Busing Associate destroy any or aD PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

14) Obfiqattone of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Pftv^ Practices provided to individuais in accordarKe with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to tfw extent (hat such change or limitation may effect Business Assodate'e
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by indivfduab whose'PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.506.

e. Covered entity shaO promptly notify Business Assod^ of any restrictions ori the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agre^ to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affed Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) TemtlnHlon for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covert Entity may irrmiediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Assodata of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit i. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
eOeged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall re^ the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Mhicellaneeus

&  Deflnillchs and Reoutatorv References. Ail terms used, but not otherwise defmed herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in (he Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to tndude this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to emend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI presided by or aeated on behalf of Covered Entity.

d.« • imetpretatlon. The partes agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shaO be resolved
to permit C^ered Entity to comply with HiPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. y.
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SeflfeoatiQn. If any lefm or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
per5on(s) or drcumstance is held InvaBd. such IrwaSdity shaO not affect other terms or
conditiorts which can be given effect without the tnvafid term or condition; to this end the
terms and coixlitions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions fri this Exhibit I regarding the use 8r>d disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and Indemnification provisiorts of section (3) e arxt Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and condltiorw (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, (he parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Community Action Program
-  Belknap'Merrimack Counties. Inc.

Name oUbe ContractorThe

re of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

birg.<L>ofc.
THle of Authorized Representative

Date

Signature of Authorized Re.

Ralph Litdefteld

Name of Authorized Representative

Executive Director

rrtle of Authorized Representative

5/25/2017

Date
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CERTIFICATIOW RSQARDIMQ THE F6PERAL RJWPfHQ ACCOUHTABtLITY AMD TRAW8PAREMCY

ACTfFFATAICQMPUAMCE

Tho Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individuai
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 end awarded on or alter Octr^r 1.2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation artd asaodatad frst-tler su^^rantt of $25,000 or more, tf the
inltia] award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modlflcatJons result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reportir>g requirements, as of the dale of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Pert 170 (Reporting Sut>award end Executive Comperwation InformatioA). the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report the (oBowlng information tor any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reportng requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for comrects / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award tlUe descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Prtndpte place of performance
9. Unlque.ldentifleroflheenttty(DUNSP)
to. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if.

10.1. More than 60% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemmerd. end those
revenues afo-gmater than $25M armuaOy and

10.2. Compensation information is not already avaaable through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data t)y the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amenrtnent la made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provfsiont agrees to comply v4th the provtsiora of
The Federal Funding AcoourtlabUHy and Transparency Ad. PubBc Law 109-282 and Public law 110-252.
ar^ 2 CFR Part 170.(Reportjr»g St^award and Executive Compensation Information), and frirther agrees
to have the ContrBctt^s;represent8tive, as identified in Sections 1.11 arxl 1.12of the General Provisions
execute the foUowtng CiertWcation:
The below named C^ractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Servim ar>d to comply with al! eppflcable provisions of the Federal
Financial AccountabiEty and T rartsparency Act

' Corrtreclof Name:
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimsck Counties, Inc.

5/2512017 .

(Me Name
Titie:

te^ Rtrp
O

E

h Uttlefield)
xecutive Director

Etftta J-CwtfcrtloARseaiCStgVwFeewWFundino Centreoar muali
AflofiuntebSy And Trampweney Ad (FFATA) Ccmpianoe
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FORMA

As the Contractor Meiitlfled In Section 1.3 of the General Provlakms. I certify that the responses to the
OelMr Dsted questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS numtrer for Your entltv is: 07-399-7504

2. Ir* your busineM or organization's precedng eomptetod ffscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your arvuia) gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts
loans, greras. sub-grarrta. and/or cooperative ogreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or mae In ennud
gross re^wnues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants sutrgrants and/Or
cooperettve agreements?

NO YES

if the ansaer to #2 above Is NO. stop here

if the answer to #2 above b YES. ptesae answer the fpOowlr)g:

3. Dom the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in yoi^
business V organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15<d) of the Securities
Exchange Add 1934.(15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the IntemaJ Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES

if the answer to 63 above b YES. stop here

If the answer to 03 above b NO. please answer the following:

4. The names atkI compensation of the fhre most highly compensated ofRceia in your business or
organtzatlon are as foAows:

Name

Name

Name

Name

Name

Amount:

Amount

Amount:.

Amount.

Amount
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